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Chairman and Chief Executive’s 2009 Performance Review

In the past year, EastPack has continued to

get its house in order to build a sustainable
future and position the business for ongoing
growth, sector leadership and industry influence
to achieve its vision of being a world class
postharvest operater from orchard through to
market.

We are pleased to report a solid financial result
for the year ended 31 December 2009 with
significant growth in revenue, earnings and
profitability for our grower shareholders and
gains in operational efficiencies from upgrading
infrastructire, processes and capabilities to see
EastPack deliver higher than average industry
orchard gate returns to our grower suppliers.

Given the sound financial result, Directors

have increased the rebate paid to Transactor
Shareholders from 20 cents to 25 cents per Class
I tray of kiwifruit supplied and lifted the dividend
declared on Investor shares from 13 cents to 14
cents per share gross. The company's retained
current 2009 earnings was 51.6 million after
provision far dividends.

EastPack ended the year with a healthy balance
sheet, assisted also by lower interest rates

than those prevailing in 2008, and very strong
cash flows. This will enable planned capital
improvements to be funded through retained
earmings, depreciation, transactor shares issued,
and a small amount of bank debt.

Key Financlal Statisiics

2008 % Change

Company Revenue $61,249,000 556,244,000 +9%

Operating Surplus Before Rebates 58,830,000 $6,651,000 +32%
 Rebates Paid 53,878,000 $3,016,000 +29%
| Operating Profit Before Tax 55,329,000 54,320,000 +23%

After Tax Profit $3,980,000 $3,190,000 +25%

Earnings per Investor Share 16¢aftertax  13¢after tax +23%
‘Company Liabilities s —— -

{excludes Transactor Share Capital)

Number of Transactor Shares lssued 11,114,040 5,828,800 +13%

Mumber of Investor Shares 24,503,122 24,503,122

Equity Ratio (includes Transactor Share Capital) 55% 51% +7%

Annual Report 2009
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Paoint of Difference

We are a grower owned co-operative, dedicated to working In the best interest of our growers at all times.
As such, we are an attractive proposition to our suppliers who resoundingly suppart the premise of grower
ownership and control, not just of their postharvest service provider but of our industry,

We are continually refining the services we provide to our grower shareholders and suppliers by adding value
and lifting our imvestment appeal. Our charges for services are in line with industry competitors, lower in
some instances, while our profitability and returns to shareholders are credible and Orchard Gate Returns (o
Our growers are among the best in the industry.

The backbone of the business is owr vision
of having a world class orchard to market
supply chain based on manufacturing
excellence and LEAN manufacturing
principles, Our business strategy to achieve
that ambition is based on four key planks to
provide growers with;

1 Operational excellence

2. Sustainable future

12

S0

TRITOA (milliony]

2 2 8 ¥

3. Outstanding customer Services

4, Leading financial performance Company Profit before Rebates &
Shareholder Return

Operational Performance

A point of difference is our understanding
that we must continually earn a reputation
a5 @ leader in innovation and quality, This
i% demonstrated with improved out-tums,
reduced fruit loss, consistently improving
delivery efficiencies, alignment to our

sk Compary Frofit bofore Aehates —e—Pre Tas Earnings per Sharey

marketer's specifications and providing
expert support to suppliers in optimising .
their crop value. Rebates (cents per tray)

EastPack continues to be a top OGR
performer and we aim to grow that
record, We are therefore very focussed on
continually lifting quality and efficiencies
to improve grower OGR and shareholder
profitability.

Rebue | Tewy

e« BFERHEE
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We are continuing to insvest in infrastructure,
people and processes. We're working with
external expertise to drive the continuous
development of guality systems and processes
using LEAN production and manufacturing
principles. The results have been excellent with
improved production, better quality outcomes,
elimination of waste and reduced costs,
highlighted by a 9.0% reduction in total labour
costs in 2009,

A key to our success has been staff buy-in to the
LEAN way of operating. Our people are highly
motivated. Team members are proactively
identifying problems and implementing
improvements, analysing operating systems to
enable standard work practices to be mapped,
information is being shared, performance
standards agreed and results are being

reported in a timely manner to achieve planned
DUtCOMmes.

Annual Report 2009

We are also investing more in training and
adding technical and field resources to work
with growers on their orchards to help optimise
their crop value and orchard profitability.

This disciplined approach has seen us achieve
the operational goals and objectives set at the
beginning of 2009 as part of our four-year plan
to position EastPack as one of the most efficient
postharvest operators in the New Zealand
industry and the growers choice.

We were disappointed with GREEN fruit loss

im 2009 and hawve set targets for reducing the
percentage in the new season. A sub-committee
of directors and senior executives has been
formed to investigate the causes for the 2009
result and implement systems and processes to
correct the situation,
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Attracting Critical Mass

We packed 16 million export tray equivalents of
kiwifruit in 2009, made wp of 10 million trays of
Hayward GREEN Kiwifruit (including ORGANIC)
and & million trays of Hort16A GOLD Kiwifruit.
This wolume fell short of our target due to crop
loss from hail damage and actual praduction
proving to be lower than our grower estimates.
This meant our facilities were under-utilised in
2009,

For 2010 we are aiming to handle 18.25 million
tray equivalents of Class | kiwifruit, up 14.0%
over the previous year, and an ambitious target
given that industry production is expected to be
litthe more in 2010 than in 2009,

EastPack's growth has been impressive over the
past decade thanks to the ongoing support

Annual Report 2009

of some of New Zealand’s best and mast
entrepreneurial kiwifruit growers. While total
New Zealand crop volumes have increased by
61.0% from 62 million trays to 101 million trays
since 2000, EastPack’s rate of growth has been
160.0% - and that is organic growth without
any volume contribution from mergers or
acquisitions.

EastPack today is the second largest kiwifruit
entity in New Zealand after Seeka and the
biggest GOLD kiwifruit post harvest service
provider with our growers” production
representing 27.0% of ZESPRI's total Hortlb A
exports in 2009,
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In 2011 the company expects to grow overall and installing a new bin tip and in-feed at
volumes by another 10.0%, and as a strong Edgecumbe,

supporter of ZESPRI's new varieties programme
we aim to be number one in the New Zealand
industry in handling new varieties as they are
released commercially.

In 2010 we are budgeting $9.0 million for capital
improvements including commissioning a six-
lane sizer with soft bin tipping and automated
packing capabilities and six new coolstores
providing 900,000 static tray capacity for Te
Puke. This will be funded through retained
earnings, depreciation and a small amount of
bank debt,

Quality Investments

The high rate of capital spend will therefore
continue to ensure that the company has
modern facilities that support efficient delivery
of guality across all key processes and are
adequate to meet the increased volumes we are

targeting.

Diversified Kiwifruit investments

EastPack has remained focussed on its core
activities of processing kiwifruit in 2009. During
the year Directors decided to exit our investment
im Jet Stick — a labeller system supplier. This has
been a loss maker and a suitable exit strategy
was implemented.,

EastPack arguably has the most modemn

and sophisticated frult processing plant and
technology avallable in New Zealand, particularly
for GOLD Kiwifruit, and we believe this gives us a
competitive advaniage over other kiwifrult post
harvest operators. We are strongly positioned
to continue o grow to support the ambitions

and emerging opportunities for our grower
shareholders and suppliers.

We retained our 50.0% ownership of Southern
Produce, a fruit marketing company whose
main focus is marketing Class Il kiwifruit to
Australia and the New Zealand domestic market.
It also participates in a collaborative Class |

EastPack spent $7.3 million on capital upgrades export programme to North America. This is a

in the 2009 season building new coolstores successful company and EastPack’s return from
in bath Te Puke and Opotiki, adding further it Is excellent.

improvements in automation in Te Puke
Annual Report 2009 O
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Integration Supports Value Added Growth

We see our current industry structure with its
integrated marketing and world leading research
and development as being good not just for
growers and the wider kiwifruit industry but also
for New Zealand.

Dur industry’s collaborative and co-operative
way of working together means Mew Zealand
will continue 1o lead the category worldwide
and our country will earn more from exporting a
unique portfolio of quality kiwifruit.

The New Zealand kiwifruit industry is in growth
mode. Our single point of entry (SPE) structure
provides an essential stable envirpnment to
support investment and innovation. ZESPRI
expects that with the continuation of the
grower-endorsed regulatory structure exports
will continue to grow strongly and accelerate
with the introduction of appealing, commercially
viable and protected new varieties. The
forecast indicates that over the next 15 years
Mew Zealand production will double while the
vialue in export returns will treble. This velume
growth will come from increased yields of new
varietles from both current production areas
and new developments. The lift in returns will
be realised from ZESPRI supplying premium
choices of kiwifruit to world markets under the
now firmly established ZESPRI® brand, which
incorporates high quality, good taste, effective
promations and packaging, and the well
organised and transparent ZESPRI® system, The
result is delivery of a consistent quality product
and a genuine value propaosition that is credible
and appealing to distributors, retailers and
consumers. This enables us to uphold our

Annual Report 2009

premium positioning and pricing which simply
does not happen in other fruit sales systems,

2009 has again proved that the system works.
Despite an extremely depressed world market
with other fruit suppliers witnessing a collapse
in returns, ZESPRI achieved excellent results

for New Zealand GOLD kiwifruit growers and
almost held the line on GREEN kiwifruit against
Chilean competitors who received very low
wholesale returns. New Zealand, with ZESPRI as
our marketer, was able to increase promotional
spend to prompt sales of healthy volumes at
Eood prices even in markets where consumer
spending was down. This would be impossible
tor achieve if Mew Zealand had multi exporters
competing in those markets outside of New
Zealand and Australia,

ZESPRI Is putting significantly more resources
into marketing the GREEN kiwifrult crop in
2010, There ls urgency in this effort and a clear
understanding that returns to GREEMN kiwifruit
growers need to increase. Part of this additional
marketing activity is in new or developing
markets including France, Italy, Malaysia,
Indonesia, Thailand, Vietnam and India.
Further growth in these markets and continued
expansion in China and Japan should mean that
this year's GREEN crop is well sold and in good
time with better returns to growers. Prospects
should also be helped by relatively favourakble
forward exchange cover taken by ZESPRI for
2010 and 2011.
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Influencing the Future

EastPack needs to continue to grow the business
to grow with the industry. However, we need

to do more than that. As one of the country’s
leading postharvest operator and the biggest
grower owned co-operative we also have an
important role in influencing the future direction
of the industry and supparting the planned
growth so that the end results benefit EastPack’s
growers and indeed all kiwifruit growers,

We signal that while much of EastPack’s growth
should come from our competitive best value
proposition, it may also include some merger
or acquisition activity. This we see as necessary
to ensure that no single entity owigrows other
entities to the extent that it can control or
dictate industry policy. There needs to be a
balance and at present EastPack is the mast
appropriately positioned to ensure balance s
maintained.

However, wie do want 1o ensure that our own
expansion retains and enhances what we see
as our prime competitive advantage of having
sufficient scale at each of our three sites to
optimise efficiencies for grower owners and
suppliers. Further industry rationalisation will
occur. Thiere will be stiff competition to secure
sufficient supply and volume throughput to
optimise the capital spend in acquiring the latest
packing and coolstorage plant and equipment
and getting the expected returns and savings
from the move to automation. There will be a
need too to recruit high quality management
from a relatively small pool of expertise,

Most of our larger compaetitors have a
significantly greater challenge in this area with

numerous smaller operations reguiring major re-

imvestment in the short to medium term.

EastPack's high level of capex, especially over
the last three years, positions us a leader in
operating some of the most efficient packing
and coclstorage facilities in the world today.

Board

EastPack's Directors’ fees have increased
substantiaily this year in line with the approval
at last year's Annual Meeting. This adjustment
Was necessary and appreciated,

The challenges facing the Board today are
requiring close attention to critical strategic
issues as the company grows and we work to
ensure that company and shareholder benefits
are maximised.

Our Directors, particularly our Grower Directors,
are each allocated specific responsibilities and
duties, including representing EastPack and

you, our shareholders, on other boards and
industry forums. This provides EastPack with
the right level of representation and Influence
withim our industry and for all the company's
business interests. We believe that our company
is being appropriately governed by your Board
and there is suitable and valuable input by the
two Independent Directors, Dr Mike Ashby and
Maurice Kidd. Mark Hudson and Grant Eynon
retire by rotation at this year's Annual Meeting
and both are offering themselves for re-election,

During the year a formal election process and
terms of reference were agreed for the EastPack
Entity Trust (EET) and endorsemant will be
soupght again at this year’s Annual Meeting to be
held on Monday, 26 April 2010, at 7:30pm at the
Edgecumbe Hall.

Annual Report 2009
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Financial 5tatements

It Is the directors’ responsibility to ensure preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of operations and cash
flows for the year. The external auditors are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial
statements,

The financial statements set out in this report have been prepared by management in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice. They are based on appropriate accounting policies which have been consistently
applied and which are supported by reasonable judgements and estimates.

After reviewing internal management financial reports and budgets the directors believe that the company
will continue to be a going concern in the foreseeable future, For this reason they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Board of Directors

The company's constitution requires a minimum number of 6 shareholder directors, of those shareholder
directors, not less than 4 shall hold Transactor Shares, and not less than 2 shall hold Investor Shares. At any
given time not less than one director must reside in the Whakatane District, not less than one director must
reside in the Opotiki District and not less than one director must reside in the Western Bay of Plenty or Hawkes
Bay Districts. The maximum number of directors is ning,

At least one third of Directors shall retire from office each year at the annual general meeting, but shall be
eligible for re-election. The retiring Directors must be those Directors who have been longest serving since they
were last elected.

I addition to the shareholder directors, the Board may appoint not more than 2 persons, to be directors of the
Company for such period as the Board shall think fit. An Appointad Director shall not be taken into account in
determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at any annual meeting and he or she shall
cease to hold office as a director at the expiration of the period for which he or she was appointed.

The Board currently comprizes six shareholder directors, and two appointed directors,

The Directors have a wide range of skills and expertise that they use to the benefit of the company.
The primary responsibilities of the Board include:

" to establish the vision of the company

. to establish long term goals and strategies of the company

. to approve annual financial reports

. to approve annual budgets

. to approve corporate policies

. to ensure the company has good internal controls and keeps adequate records

L] o ensure legistative compliance

. to monitor executive management

" to ensure appropriate commumication (o stakeholders

Board procedures are governed by the Constitution.
Annual Report 2009
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Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties

All Directors must disclose any general and specific interests that could be in conflict with their obligations to the
company. Transactions with related parties and balances outstanding relating to the year ending 31 December
2009 are disclosed in Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the company’s system of internal controls, The Board monitars the operational and
financial aspects of the company and considers recommendations from external auditors and advisors on the
risks that the company faces.

The Board ensures that recommendations made are assessed and appropriate action is taken where necessary

to ensure risks are managed appropriately,

Internal Contrals

It is management’s responsibility to ensure adeguate accounting records are held. Directors are responsible for
the company's system of internal financial controls.

Internal financial controls have been implemented to minimize the possibility of material misstatement. They
can provide only reasonable assurance and not absolute assurance against material misstatements or loss,

No major breakdowns of internal controls were identified during the year.

Committeas

The Board operates an Audit Committee,

Audit Committes

Review of the annual and financial reports are carried out by the Board,

Attendance at meetings

Directors meeting attendances are disclosed in the Statutory Information section of this report.

Directors Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration during the year s disclosed in the Statutory Information section of this report.

Executives’ Remuneration

Executives’ remuneration greater than 5100,000 per annum réceived in their capacity as employees during the
year is disclosed in the Statutory Information section of this report.

Entries in the Interests Register

In addition to the interests and related party transactions disclosures in Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements, there were no interests disclosed to the Board during the year.

@
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EASTPACK LIMITED
STATUTORY INFORMATION

As required by Section 211 of the Companies Act 1993 we disclose the following information:

The Group's principle activities during the year were:
- Packing and coolstorage of kiwifru
= Drchard management

Directors’ Interests:
R M Hudson, A K Woolsey, A Goult, M McBride and R B Sharp own orchards for which the
Company provides services on normal commercial lerms.

G S Eynon and M J Monigomery own a kiwifruit contracting business that provides labour and
contracting services to EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Limited under normal commercial terms. G 8
Eynon and M J Montgomery own an orchard that is leased to EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Limited
on normal commercial terms.

R M Hudson is a partner of a business that provides contracting services o EastPack Kiwifrus
Operations Lid on normal commercial terms.

M ] Montgomery is a Trustee of o Trust that leases property (EPC coolstores) to EastPack Lid on
normal commercial lerms.

R B Sharp is a director of Zespri, a8 major customer of EastPack Lid. RB Sharp 1s also a Director of
Robert Monk Transport Ltd which provides transport services to EastPack Limited on normal
commercial terms. RB Sharp has no financial interest in Robert Monk Transport Lid.

Lse of Company Information:
The Boord received no notices duning the vear from directors requesting the use of company
information received in their capacity as directors which would not have been otherwise available 1o
ihem.

Share Dealing:

Directors acquiring shares or any interest in shares in the company during the year are as follows:

Shares Acquired Shares Sold
During the year During the year
Transactor Inwestor Transactor Investor
K M Clarke . . = :
G 5 Evnon 3,120 - . z
K M Hudson 5,085 - - =
A Gault 15,844 - . .
A K Woolsey - 3,182 . =
M J Monlgomery 3,120 - - .
R B Shoarp 49,736 - . .
M S Azhby . < d Z
M G Kidd . - = %
M McBnde 4,826 - = .
G W Sommerville 19,709 - . B

All Transactor shares were issued at §1 per share.

Annual Report 2009
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EASTPACK | D

STATUTORY INFORMATION
Femuneration & Other Benefiis:
The following persons held office as Director during the year and received the following remuneration:
20040 1008
Remuneration (her Mectings  Remuneration Other
Benefits Attended Benefits
K M Clarke - - - 6,000 -
G S Eynon 25,833 - 11 15,000 -
R M Hudson 24,500 - 11 12,004) -
M ] Momtgomery 24 500 - 12 13,500 -
M McBride 16,833 - B . .
C G Overdevest - - 5 00 -
A Gauht 16,833 . - - -
A K Woolsey 7,833 - 1 14,000 -
M 5 Ashby 27.500 - 11 200,000 -
G W Sommerville 7668 - 3 3,000 -
M G Kidd 35,000 - 12 8,750 -
R B Sharp 50,000 - I 30,0400 =
236 5 - Iiliiiﬂ -

AK Woolsey and GW Sommerville retired as directors as at 27 April 2009, M McBride and A Gault were elected as
directors 27 April 2009,

Remumerati 1

The number of employees, who are not directors, whose remuneration and benefits exceeded $100,000 in the
financial year wene:

Ciroup Parent

10,000 - 1 10,300 2

120,000 - 130,000

130,000 - 140,000

140,000 - 150,000

150,000 - 160,000

20,000 - 190,000

260,000 - 210,000

260,000 - 270,000

P T e —
e s e [ i [

11 1o

Dronations
No donations were made by the company during the year,

Far and on belanlf of the Board:

i Chairman 22 March 2010

L¥irector 22 March 2000

)
Annual Report 2009
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EASTPACK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Motes GROUP PARENT
2008 2008 2009 2008
5 5 5 5
Revenue (4) _GL249.468 __ 56244359 _ 57.6M993 _ 33972476
Packaging materials 12,119,540 11,635811 12,119,540 11,635,811
Employvee benefits 23,366,959 21,338,684 224046, 55) 20,050,571
Drepreciation 4,948 R42 4,635,019 4,048 342 4,633,504
Amontisation - 1,200 . [, 2
DMrectons compensation 236,500 131,250 233,500 131,250
Oriher expenses 0 908 483 E.B03 845 7.020,785 a467,081
Rental and operating lease expenses Ta. 454 T4, 635 TH 32 801,982
Finance costs __L088283 2262508 ___LOBRIO7 2260508
52,419,090 49,592 952 48,60 1 686 446,883,997
Oiperating profit before rebates BHINITE 6,651,307 9,083 307 7088479
Less rebates paid IRTENTO 3015 TG 3BTEIT0 15714
Share of profit{loss) in associnles (29) 377,148 654868
Operating profit before axation 5319356 4,320459 5205,137 4.072,763
Less taxation (6} 1,349,442 1,030,368 1318177 1,255,942
Crperating prefit afier axation 3!9?!!914 3,190,091 _ﬂw IEl6H11
(vber comprehensive income
Gain on revaluation 15 2006 2TR - 2 006,278 -
Gain on fair value of equity investments (9 36,051 54,965 16,051 54,963
Other comprehensive incame for the year 2,042,129 54,965 2,042,329 54,965
Total Comprehensive income for the year 6,022,243 3 56 5,929.289 2,871,786
Frofit attributahble to:
Orwners of the Company 6,00 8,526 3245056
Minonty inieresis 3n7 -
Earnings per share
Basic eamnings per share (7 016 cedits .13 cents
Diluted eamings per share (7h .16 cenis 013 cenis
Annual Report 2009 The accompanying motes form part of the financial statements E
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EASTPACK LIMITED
STAT TOF CHANGES IN E ITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Motes Share capital  Properties  Fair value Retalned  Minority Taotal
revalaatlon FESErve earnings  interests
Feseryie
5 5 £ 5 5 5

GROLP
Opening balance 1 January 2004 S617.088 11658617 - 3,993,188 . 15,269,493
Profit or loss For the vear (10 - - - ER LN - 319000
Uither comprehensive income:
Fair value of equity investments  (9) . . 54,965 = . &4 08
Payment of dividends (12} = - - {1,897, 791) - (1. BR7,703)
Closing balamee 31 December 2008 Uﬂrﬁ!& H%ﬁ 7 5-1!?-55 Elﬁﬂﬁ = Iﬁéli!ﬁrﬂﬁ
Profit or loss for the year {110} . - z 3,976,197 iny 1970914
Chber comprehensive income:
Fair value of equity investments () - - J6 051 - - 6051
Revaluation of property, plant and
Equipmeil (% . 2,006 278 . . - 2 MM, 2TH
Minority interest equity on

scquisition {11} - - - [ 26,288) 210,000 (6, 288)
Payment of dividends (12} . . - _{2.358.977) - _{235897T)
Closing balanee 31 December 2009 'J!ﬁ”!ﬂﬂﬂ 13,664 o, 006 6 HTT.009 %Tl? ahi?i'li"-'éql
EARENT
Dipening balanee | Jangary 2008 0617088 11658617 - 3,208,571 . 24,491,276
Profit or boss for the year {10} . . . 2R16.82] - 2816821
Other compeehensive income:
Fair value of equity investments  (9) . . 54,965 - . 54,965
Payment of dividends (12} - - . {1 Be7 TO1y - (1.897,793)
Closing balance 31 December 2008 9617088 11,688,617 54,965 4,124,590 = 25,455,269
Profit or loss for the vear (1) . = - 3, BR6, B0 . 1,886,960
Chher comprehensive mcome
Fair value of equity investments  (9) . - 36,051 - - 36,051
Revaluation of property, plant and
equipment i) = 2,06, 278 - - 2,046,278
Paymiend of dividends 12} (2358977} -

= d " {1358 977)
Closing balance 31 December 2009 QEMT!ﬂBu I.}ﬂﬁﬁdﬁs !I!ﬂlﬁ 5,65 5@ - Hﬁgaz

Annual Report 2009 The acoompanying nores form part of the financial setemens -Z
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EASTPACK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

Moles GROUP PARENT
nng 1] 2y og
5 5 5 5

EQUITY
Share capital (8 Q617,088 61T, 088 6l T, HE 9,617,088
Reserves (%) 13,755,911 11,713,582 13,755.911 11,713,582
Retained enmings {10} 6877019 5286 087 5,652,531 4,124,600
Todal equity aftributable io equity holders

of the Company In250,018 26,616,757 29,025,582 25455270
Minority isterest (11 23717 . " 2
Todal Equity 30,273,735 26,616 757 1'1,&35.515; 25,455,270
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
[3eferred taxation (h) 1,554 300 2 BGR.O74 3144 877 2682388
Income in advance (19 3E2 230 632,230 38220 632,230
Trumsacior shares L E.1] P14, 040 8,828,800 LE 14,0400 0 H28 800
Borrowings {20} 1.0, 200,00 18,200, (44 10,200,000 18, 200, K

235,250,571 31,520,104 24,841,147 1343418
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Barrowings - curment portion (20 11,470 (X 4, D000 I 1,470,000 & 00, (W
Accounts payable (13} 6625231 i, DO0LGTO 6,282 50 6,656,747
GST payable (13) 315,527 194,985 315,243 | 66,366
Employes entitlements (14) 289,793 263,660 210243 263 600
Provishon for dividend (15) 1034 544 g2 895 1,134,544 Q12895
Provision for taxation (6} 114,513 330,581 323,204 325,966
Denwvaliviss 21} . 228 - Q0. 2IE
Income m sdvance (19) 250,000 250,00 250,00 250,01

20,199,608 2943028 20,055,034 12665871
TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED Ti?l%'“d ) | HE9 '|'3|‘31!1TE‘ ﬂilﬂiﬂ
NN CLU T
Property, plant and equipment (27} 66,922,276 61,345,772 66,500.97] 61,333,006
[estments in subsidiaries (28] . . B0, Qg
I mvestients in associates (29 1,443,735 1.523.5] TI2.074 TR A10
[nvestmends (3] 023,326 DL5 Db TGS TRS D44
Intangible assets (3} - 10,800 - 10,500
Unpaid capital - term (26) 65,026 176371 65,026 176,377

9, 354 363 fad 0] [ 360 G 544169 63,091 636

A
Cash and cash eguivalents (4} ), 705 1,998,054 271,341 1,93%.521
Areounts receivable (23 2001 485 2087985 1,445,528 G007
Intercompany advances (13} - - 1427834 [.452834
Leased orchands (24) 1,368 448 618,952 + -
Inventory (25} 2,235,749 2,344 590 2200131 2313095
Unpaid capital - current (26) 32 760 27,500 32,760
6, 3659 551 T.077.523 53775094 6372923

TOTAL ASSETS 75,723,914 __TIUSBBRY 73921763 _ 69.464.559

For and on behali of the Boarnd:

~Z ; Chairman 22 March 2010
Directos 22 March 20100
Annual Report 2009 The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements I
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EASTPACK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Moles

Cash was provided from:
Receipts from customers
Interest received
Dividenils recelved
Taxation refinuds

Met GST received

Cash was disharsed to:

Paymients to suppliers & employees
Paymendt of interest

Met GST Paid

Taxation paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES (32)

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:
Associate dividends/rebates
Proceeds from investments

Cash was disbursed to:

Purctiase of shares

Purchase of associates

Purclase of fixed assets

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from;

lssue of shares

Uinpaid capital receipts
Advances froms subsidiaries

Cash on scquisition of subsidiary

Cash was disbursed to;
Aclvances 1o associales
Payment of dividends
Reduction of term leans

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH SURPLUS (DEFICIT)
Add opening cosh and cash equivalents balance
Closing cash and cash equivelents (23}

Annual Report 2009

GROUP PARENT
20049 el L1111 2009 208
5 5 % 5
624199]2 26,053,164 £7.340,780 £4, 760 170
56,274 120,747 12.263 63,955
195,921 | 15,502 £52 150 264,743
- 145,251 - 147 642
177,348 193,420 92,220 192,721
62 849 455 57,537,084 7,097 443 55 438 440
$2,322,960 43,709,371 46,973,220 41,006,745
1092 508 2370503 | 092 8K 2,370,503
1,328,324 . 1,320,939 %
54 744 152 46,079 574 49,387,057 43 377,248
8,105,273 11457210 H.610.386 12,061,192
357,143 528,380 . :
3292 -
ARD.935 S2E.380 = g
B, 000 2670 80,000
®.04% 183 7,905 782 8,047 569 7,991,208
0,028,183 7,908 461 0,027 564 7.99],205
(8,638.248) (747T0.081) 02T 5640 (7,991, 205)
[ 285240 659,210 1,285 240 BS9.210
106,091 162,556 L0, 162 %86
Z = 25 (MM 109457
1.B57 640 #21,766 1,416,331 931,263
14,823 . . Z
2,137,238 R4 R0 2137528 034 598
£300, (1) 2 (M 00 L300 (KD 2 (10K (M)
2682061 1044 808 2667328 2 0R4 ROH
(B24.412) (2,163, 132) (1,250,997 (2,053,635}
(1,357,367 | 823,997 {1 668,180) 20016352
1998006 174,099 1,939,521 {76.831)
f:40, 709 | 998,096 271,341 1,939,52|

The cccommpenmiding medes form part of the financlal statenrenis

@
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EASTPAC

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

EastPack Limited (the "Company”) is a Hybrid Co-operative company domiciled and incorporated in New Zealand, registered
under the Co-operative Companies Act 1996, The Company is an issuer for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993,
The financial stastements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the Financinl Reporting Act 1993,

The financial statements for the “Parent” are for the Company as a separate legal entity. The consolidated financial statements
for the "Group® are for the economic endity comprising the Company and its subsidianies per note 28,

The Company and Group anc designated as profit oriented entities for financial reporting purposes. The principal activities of
the Group and Company are operating o packhouse, coolstorage, providing orchard management and a transport agent.

The fnancil statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2000, Cnee issued, the Directors do not have
the power to amend these financial stalements,

{a) Basis of preparation of the (inancial report

The prncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Compliance with IFRS

These financinl stwtements have been prepared in accordance with generlly nccepted accounting practice in New Lealand.
They comply with New Zealand Equivalents to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit oriented entitics.  They also comply with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of cenain critical acoounting estimates. It
also requires management o exercise s judgment in the process of applying the Group's sccounting policies. The areas
involving o higher degree of judgment or complexity, or aress where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 2

Histowical Cost Convention
The fimancial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of some liabilities which are
mieasured af fair value, ind revaluations to fair value for cerain classes of assets as described in the accounting policies.

Functional and Presentation Curreny
These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars ($), which is the Company and Group's functional currency.
All finapcial mformation presented in Mew Zealand dollars has been moumded 1o the nearest dollar.

" .
All revenue and expense transsctions are recorded exelusive of GST. Assels and liabilities are similarly stated exclusive of
GST, with the exception of receivables and payubles, which are stated with GST included. The net amount of GST recovierable
from, or payable to, Inland Revenue, is included as part of receivables or payables in the halance sheet.

i) Consolidation

Investments in subsidiaries and associates by the Company are carried at cost in the Company”s financial statements.

St taliariey

Subsidiaries are all entities (inclsding special purpose entities) that the Group has the power 1o govern the financial and
operiting policies of. This power is accompanded by the Group having shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights
of the entity. The existence and effect of potentinl voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidinries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transfermed 1o the Group. They are de-consolidmed from the date that control ceases.

Annual Report 2009
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE ED 31 DECEMBER 2009

(b} Consolidation (continued)

The purchase method of accounting i used to ascoount for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisation is measured as the foir value of the nssets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed af the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attnibutable to the acquisition. Where settlement of any pant of the considerution is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted 1o their present value as ot the date of exchange, The discount rate
used is the rate at which o similar borrowing could be oblained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

Excep for non-currend assets that are classifed as held for sale {which are measured at foir value less costs bo sell), ideniifinble
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilitics assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
vatlues al the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifinble net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair valoe of the net assets of the subsidiary sequired, the difference is
recognised directly in the incoms statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the Group are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated, but are consddered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred,

The financial statements of the substdianies are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Accounting policies of
subsidianes have been changed where necessary o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group,

Minority mnterests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiartes are identificd separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interesis at the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination, The inerest of minority sharehobders in the
acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilitics and contingent labilities
recognised. Losses applicable to the minonty in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary's equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able 1o make an additional
investmient to cover the losses.

dxxpcigie companies

Associates are all entitics over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
sharcholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised ni coss.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labilities and
contingent liabilitres of the associate recognised ai the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifinble assets, lnbilities ond contingent labilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, 15 recognsed immediately in profit or loss.

The Group®s investment in its associstes is accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the consolidated fnancial
stefements.  The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill sdentified on acquisition, net of sy scoumulsted
impairment loss. The Group’s shore of ils associntes” post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised in the parent
entity’s profit or loss, while in the consolidated Tinancial statements they reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Ciroup's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurmed obligations or made payments on behalf of the
s ale,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are elimmated to the extent of the Group”s interest in the
associates.  Unrealised losses are also eliminuted unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.  Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

(&) Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of Goods and Services Tox, retumns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group, The Group recagnises revenue when the amount of revenue can be relinbly measured, it is
probable that future coonomic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for cach of the Group's
activitics, as described below,

Sales and charges

Revenue from the sale of goods i recognised in the profit or loss when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
becn trunsferred o the buyer. WNo revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertaintics regarding recovery of the
considerntion due, nssociated costs or the possible retum of goods, or where there is continuing management involvement with

the goods.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the tofal services 1o be provided.
When the conlract outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expensies necognised
that are recoverable.

{ntereat revenue

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. This is a method of caloulating the
amortizged cost of o financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate,
which is the mite that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset o the net
carrving amount of the financial assel

Divigkend revemme
Dividend revenue is recognised when the nght 1o receive a dividend has been established. Dividends received from associates
are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

Rent revene
Rental income s recognised on & straighl-line basts aver the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
indegiral part of tee wotal Fental income, over the term of the lease.

(dy Inventories

Inventories ore measured al the lower of cost and et realisable value. Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling price in the
ordimary course of business, less the estimated cosis of completion and selling expenses. Cost is based on the first-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition,

(e} Leased Orchards

Prepaid leased orchard expenses are camied forward in the Statement of Financial Position as an asset and recognised at the
same time as the income to which they relate, 1.¢. against the crop proceeds from the following year. The asset 1s released as the
prepaid expense is incurred i the profit or loss.
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EASTPACK LIMITED
N T NCIAL STATEMENTS

MLDECEMBER 2009

(N Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are iitially messured at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase/construction price, costs directly attributable to bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to
operate as intended and the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gainsTosses on qualifying cash Now hedges of foreign cumency purchases
of property, plant and equipment, Where an item of property, plant and equipment is self-constructed, its construction cost
includes the cost of materials and direct labour and an appropriaste proportion of production overheads,

After initial recognition, all items of property, plamt and equipment, except land and buildings, are mexsured ol cost less
dccumulnied depreciation and impakrment losses,

Land, land improvements, buildings and plant and equipment are measured ot revalued amounts less any subsequent
accurmulated deprecintion and impairment losses. Revaluations are undertaken by an independent registered valuer with
suflicient frequency to ensure that the carrying vilue of the item does not differ materially from its fair value. Increases in the
carmying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other reserves in sharcholders’ equity, except 1o the
extent that it reverses o revaluntion decrement for the same asset previously recopnised in profit or loss, in which cose the
inerement i recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against other
reserves directly in equity: all other decreases are charged to the profit or loss. Any accumulated deprecialion as ot the
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross camrying amounts of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. At each balance date the carrying value of each asset is reviewed to ensure that it does not differ materially
from the asset’s fair value ol reporting date. Where necessary, the asset is revalued to reflect its fair value,

Subseguent costs are added o the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment when that cost is incureed iFif is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 1o Group and the cost of the itlem can be measured
relinbly. The carrving amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incurmed. Where maternal parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are sccounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

AT agsel’s carmying amadd s wilten down immediately o ifs recoverable amount i the asgel’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (ie, if the asset is impaired),

An fem of property, plant and equipment s derccopnised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Goins sd losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrving amount.
These are included i the profit or loss. Upon disposal or derecognition or a revalued asset, any revaluation reserve relating to
the particular asset is transfierred 1o retained carnings,

Chther pilant wnd eguipeneni
Other plant and equipment is measured at cost bess sccumulnted depreciation and impatrsent losses.
Plant and equipment not revalued includes: motor vehicles, Information technology assets and fumiture and fittings.
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

(1 Property, Flant and Equipment {continued)

Land is not deprecinted, Capital works in progress are nol depreciated until completed and available for use. Depreciation on
ciher assets is caleulnied using the simaight-line and diminishing value methods 1o allocate their cost or revalued amounts to
their ressdunl values over their estimated wseful lives. Depreciation s charged in the profit or loss. The residual value and
useful lives of all assets ase reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date. Land is not depreciated. Capital
wierks in progress are not deprecisied until commissioned.

The depreciation raies used for each class of assets are:

Class of fixed asset Depreciation basis

Land Improvements A% Diminishing value
Buildings 25-15% Straight line

Plant and Mofor Vehicles T.5- 60 % Eminishing value
Fumiture and Fittings 9« 6l % Diminishing value
(2} Lenses

Leases are classified at their incoption as cither operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement
so s 1o reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.

Leases as o Lessed

Leases in which the Group assumes substaniilly all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of
the mimmum lease payments. The cormespondiig rental obligations, net of fnance charges, are included in other long term
payables.

The propeny, plan and equipment acquired under a finance lease is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lense term and is assessed for indicators of impatmeent in the same manner as other non-financial asseis.

Esch lease payment s allocated between the liability and finance charges. The interest element of the finance cost is ch
to the profil or loss over the lease period so 28 to produce o constant pertodic mte of mterest on the remaining balance of the
Liability for ezch peried.

Leases i which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
lenses, Payments made wber operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss
on & straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lenses as o lessor
Leases in which the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as
operating leases,

Assets lensed to third parties under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial
position.  They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with stmilar owned property, plant wnd
equipment and arc assessed for indicators of impairment in the some manker 85 other pon-financial assets, Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognised a5 an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as remal income. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on
# siraight-ling basis over the |ease term,

" e
(FE)
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

(k) Intangibiles

(¥ il

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an aoguisition over the fair value of the Group's share of net identifinble assels,
habilines and contingent habilities of the aoquired subsidiany/nssocinte at the date of ncquisition. Goodwill on scquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in minngible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates 15 included in investments in nssociales.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is nel amortised, Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment snnually. or more
frequeently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, sl {5 carmied 1t cost less securmulated
impairment bosses. Gains or losses on the disposal of an entity inclode the carmyving amount of goodwill relating o the entity
sold.

Imipairment losses on goodwill gre not reversed. Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-genemiing units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating wnits that are expected 1o benefit
from the business combination m which the goodwill arose.

]
Intangible asscls with finite lives are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amorisation method for on intangible asset with o finite useful life are reviewed at
least at gach financial year-end.

Patents, trademorks and licences are recognized at cost of scquisttion, Palemts, trademarks and licenses have o finite life and
are carried at cost less sccumulated amortisation and any impairment losses, They are amartised over thelr estimated yseful
lives which range from 10 1o 15 vears,

(i Income Tax

Currenl income lax expense 15 the 1ax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate,
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitics attributable to lempomry differences between the tax base of wssets
el leabilities and their carrying amownts in the financinl statements.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
nssets and linbilives and their carrying amounts in the consolidated fnancial satements. However, the deferred income lax is
nat accounted for iF it arses from initial recognition of an assel or liability in o transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the imnsaction alfects neither scoounting nor iaxable profit or loss. Deforred income inx s determined using
tax mies {und laws) thal have been enacted or subsiantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected 1o apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax lability is settled.

Deferred income bix assels are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable thal future taxable profit will be available ngainst
which the temporary differences can be wiilised.
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EAST AMITED
NOTE NANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20409

(i Income Tas (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidianies and pssociates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and i is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.
The amount of benefits brought 1o sccount or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no adverse
change will occur in income taxation legislation, and the anticipation that the company will derive sufficient future assessable
income to enable the berefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ij} Foarcign Currency

Triansactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates prevailing af
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and linbilities denominated in forcign currencies are retmnslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forcign curmency
are translated using the exchange ric as at the date of the initial transaction. Nog-monctary iems measured at fair value ina
foreign currency are trnslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fuir value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftlement of foreign currency transactions and from the trnslation u
vear end exchange rates of monetary issets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

ik) Employee Benelits

Liabilities for employee entitlements are carried at the present value of the estimated future cash Nows.

Liahilitics for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, statwtory days in liew, annual leave and sick leave expected
1o be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the reporting date.
They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are setiled.

Profit sharing and bonus plan
The Group recognises bonuses and profit sharing payments when it is contractually obliged to make such payments, or when
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation to make such payments.

Superannisation plans

The Group pays contributions 1o superannuation plans, The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(1} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shor-term highly liquid mvestments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible (o known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdralls are shown within borrowings i current
linkbilities on the balance sheet.
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

{m} Finnnce Casts

Finunce expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings (except when capitalised to a quolifying asset), unwinding of the
discount on provistons, forcign currency losses, and impairment losses recognised on financial assets {except for trade
receivables).

Finance costs are expensed using the effective interest methaosd.

in) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that ane directly anributable vo the acquisition, construction or prodoction of 2 qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is one that takes six months or longer 1o prepare for its intended use or sale.
Diher borrowing cosis are expensed when incurred

Where the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining o qualifying asset, the amount of bomrowing costs
capitalised are the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrawing, less any investment income on the lemporary Hvestment
of those bormowings.

Where the Group borrows funds generally and uses them to fund a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs capitalised
i determined by applying a capitalisation rte to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the bormowing costs applicable 1o the borrowings that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of funding p qualifving asset

(o} Impairment of mon-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impaiment annually, or
mare frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Intangible assets not yet available
for use ane tesied for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, The Group conducts an annual intermal review of asset values, which iz used s a source of information to
assess for any indicators of impairment.  External factors, such as changes in expected future processes, technology and
cconomic conditions, are alse monitored 1o assess for indicators of impairment.  If any indication of impairment exists, an
estimate of the asset"s recoverable amount is caleulnied,

An impairment loss is recognised for e amount by which the asset’s carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount is the higher of un asset’s fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. Value in use is determined by
estimuting future cash flows from the use and ultimate disposal of the asset and discounting these (o their present value using o
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific 1o the asset.  For the purposes of nssessing
impairment, assets are grouped ol the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Impairment losses directly reduce the carrying amount of assets and ane recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impatrment ot
cach reporting date.

(p) Financial Instruments

The Group classifies its mvesiments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to muturity investmenis and available for sale finmncial assets, The classification depends on the purpose Tor
which the mvestments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at the initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation ai every reporting date,
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

ipl Financial Instroments {continued)

; % it fonir vl il or
This category has two sub categories: financial assets held for trading. and those designated st fair value through profit or loss
ot inception. A financial assel is classafied in this category IT sequired principally for the parpose of sellmg in the short term or
if 30 designated by manngement. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges,
Assets in this category are classified as curment assets iF they pre either held for trading or are expected 10 be realised within 12
maoaiihs of the balance sheet date.

Jek iy iF 10y
Held to maturity imvestiments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pavments and fixed maturities that
ihe Ciroup’s managemend has the positive intention and ability to hald 1o matunty,

Lowres qrad recenval fi
Loons and receivables are non derivative financiol assets with fixed or determinable payments that ore nol quoted in an active

markel, They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services dircetly 10 a deblor with no mtention of selling the
receivable. They are included in curremt assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date
which are classified as nop-curment assets.

The Group's loans and receivables compnse receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

] .H'
Awnilable for sale financial assets are non denvatives, priscipally equity securities, that are either designated in this category or
nvl classified in any of the other categones. They are inchided in non-curment assets unless management mtends 16 dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trede date — the date on which the Group comimits to porchase or sell the
assel,  [nvestments are initially recognised at fair valee plus trnsaction costs for all financial assees not carried ot fair value
through profit or loss,

Financal assets camed ol for value through profit or loss are minally recognised ot fairr value and fmnsaction costs are
expensed in the profit or loss. Investments i equity instruments that do have a quoted market price in an active market and
whiose Tuir values cannit be reliably measured are recognised and subsequently carried at cost,

Investments are derecognised when the nights io receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred subsiantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership.

Available for sale financial asse1s pnd financial asses a1 fair value through profin or loss are subsequently carmed at fair value.
Loans and receivables ond held to motirty investments are corried ot amortised cost using the effective inlerest method.
Realised and unrealised gains and losses ansing from changes in the Gur value of the *financial asseis ot fir value throwgh
profit or Joss” category are included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and Josses arising
from changes in the fair value of securities classified as available for sale are recognised in equity, except for forcign exchange
movements on monetary assels, which are recognised in the profit or boss, When securities classificd as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the aceumulited fuir value adjustments are included m the profit or loss as gains and bosses from investment
RECURIECS.

The far values of quoted investimens are based on current bid prces. I the market for & financial asset 15 notl active (omd for
unlisted securities), the Group cstablishes fair value by using valuation technigques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length trunsactions, reference 1o other instruments. that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific ciroumsinnces
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 'I"Eglﬂ ENDED 31 DECEMRBER 2009

{p) Financial Instruments (continmed)

The Group nsteskes al cach reporting date whethier there s objective evidence that & financial assel or a group of financial
assels is impaired. In the case of equity securitics classificd as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securitics are impaired.  If any such evidence
exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative boss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current Ffur value, less any impairment loss on that finoncial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit or loss, Impairment losses recognised in the income statemnent on equity instrumends ane not
reversed through the profit or loss.

nancial liahifiries
Financial habilities include trade payables, other creditors and loans from third parties mcluding inter-company balances and
loans from or other amounts due to director-related entities. Non-interest bearing loans and pavables are pavable on demand
nnial sre therefore recognised at their face value at inception.

Financial linbilities are recognised initlly ot fair valee, net of transaction costs incurred. They are subsequently stated af
amortised cost, Any difference between the proceeds and the redemption value s recogmised i the profit or loss over the
penod of the borrowing using the effective interest methasd.

The Group vscs derivative financial instruments (Fforwand exchange contracts and inderest rate swaps) o hedge its risks
nasociated with foreign currency and interest mie Mucteations.

Denvatives are inifially recognised af fair value on the date a derivative conlract is entered into and are subszequently
remeasured to their fir value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designoted as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group detignales certain derivatives as
either (1) bedges of the fuir value of recognised assets or liabilities or o firm commitment (fair value hedge) or (2) hedges of
highly probable forecast ransactions {cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strtegy for undertaking various hedge transactions.  The Group also documents its
assesament, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit or loss,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or lability that are attributable 1o the hedged nisk.

Cach ffow hedige

The effective portvon of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and quu.'lll'].r as cash flow hedges is
recognised in equity in the hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immedintely in the
profit or loss. Amounts sccumulated in equity are recycled in the profit or logs in the periods when the hedped itern will affect
prafit or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged akes place). However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of 8 nen-financial usset (for example, inventory) or & non-financial Hability, the gains and
Insses previously defermed in equity are tansferred from equity and included in the measurement of the initial cost or carrying
ansunl of the asset or liabiliny,

When o hedging instrument expires or i sold or ierminnted, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity af that time remaing in equity and is recognised when the forecas! transaction s
ultimately recognised in the profil of loss. When o forecas! transaction is no longer expected 1o ocour, the cumulative gain o
loss that was reporied in equity 1s immediately fransferred 1o e profit or loss.
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE Y NDED 31 DECEMB 0

ip) Financial Instruments (continued)

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for bedge accounting or hedge accounting has not been adopted. Changes in the
fwir valse of these derivative mstruments are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement purposes. The fir
value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market mtes for contracts with similar maturity
profiles at the reporting dote.  The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined by refesence to market values for similar
COnLracks.

i) Transacior Shares

Transacior share capital is classified as a liability as they are redeemable at the option of the shareholder. Rebates payable 1o
Transactor sharcholders are recognised in the profit or loss on an accruals basis.

ir} Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the finoncial year but not distributed af
balance date

Dividend distribution to the Company shareholders is recognised as a lbility in the Company’s and Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company s sharcholders.

i8) Change in Accounting Policy

The following new and revised standards and imerpretations have been adopted in the current period and have affected the
amounts and disclosares reported in these financial stements. Details of other standards and interpretations Bsued but not
adopted are reported in note 2.

JAS | fas revised in 2007) Presemiation of Financial Statements - TAS 1{2007) has introduced terminology changes (including
revised titles for the financial statements) ond changes in the formnt and content of the financial stalements,

I[FRS § Operating Segments - IFRS & 18 a disclosure Standard that has resulted in o redesignation of the Group's reportable
sepgments (see note 36).

NZ 148 7 fmproving Disclosures about Financial Instrumernis (Amendments to IFRS 7 Finaneial Instruments: Disclosires) -
The amendments to IFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in respeet of fair value measurements and liquidity nsk. The Group
has elected not to provide compartive information for these expanded disclosures in the current year in accondance with the
transitional relief offered in these amendments.

Revaluation of plamt and equipmeni - Also during the year the Company changed its policy on revaluation of plamt and
equipment. Previously the Company has not revalued plant and equipment. During 2009 (as detailed in note 27), land, land
improvements, buildings, plant and equipment were revalued by an independent external valuer. Increases in value were taken
b asset revaluation reserve. Any resultant decreases were taken to profit or loss,

There have been no other changes in secounting policies. All policies have been applied on bases consisten! with those used in
PrEVIOUS yers.
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

NOTE It CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates und judgements ane based on past performince ond management’s expectotion for the future,

Critical sccounting estimates pod assumptions

In the application of NE IFRS manigement is required 1o make judgments, estimates and assumpiions about carmying values of
msiots and labilities that are not readily apparent from other sowrces, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other faciors that are believed fo be reasonable under the circumsiance, the resulis of which
form the basis of making the judgements, Actual results may differ from these estimnies,

The cstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounling cslimates are recogmised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision alfects both current and future periods,

Judgments made by mansgement in the application of NZ TFRS that have signifecant e¢ffects on the financial stplements and
estimates with 8 significant risk of material adjustments in the next vear are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to
the financial slatements.

Logom faxgs

Income jax benefils are based on the assumption that no adverse change will occor i the income tax legislation and the
anticipation thot the company will denve sufficient future ossessable income (o enable the benefil (0 be realised and comply
with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law

NOTE 3: NEW STANDARDS
Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective:

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the IASH and the New Zealand Equivalents to those
stnndards have been published that wre mandatory for the Group®s accounting periods beginning on or after | July 2009 or later

periods but which the Group has not early adopted.
Mo yel ndopiod:

Improvements to New Zealand equivalents 1o [FRS. Port | covers smendments resulting in accounting changes for
presentation, recognition or measuremen! purposes for the following relevant stndards: NZ IFRS 5 - Plan o sell the
controlling interest in a subsidiary; NZ 1TAS 16 - Recoverable amount, W& IAS 16 - Sale of assets held for rental; N2 1AS 23 -
Components of borrowing costs; N2 1AS 27 - Measurement of subsidiary held for sale in separate financial statements; N2
IAS 36 - Disclosure of estimates used to determine recoverable amount; NZ [AS 40 - Property under construction or
development for fulure use is invesiment property. Part 2 of the improvements sets out amendments 1o varios stiedands which
affect terminology or editorial changes only, with po or minimal effect on accounting. The amended standards become
mandatory for the Group®s 2000 financial statements. The impact on the financial statements has not yet been determined.

IFRS 3 Busimess Combinations and A5 27 fay revised in 2008) - These revisions completed phase 11 of the ASRB business
combinations project. The revisions now regpine: acguisition costs to be expensed i the profit or loss; contingent consideration
s an sdjustment to liabdlity and to be recognised in the profit or loss; partial scquisitions have a choice of measurement basis
for non-controlling interests {cost or fair value); step acquisitions requires previowsresidual holdings 10 be remeasured to fair
valug; and trmnsactions with non-controlling inlerests o be recognised in equity with no goodwill or profit or loss. The
pmended standards become mundatory for the Group’s 2000 financial statements or oy business combinations occurring on or
after 1 July 2009, The impact on the financial siaterments has not vet been determined.

Improving Disclosures abowr Fimancial fostrumments (Amindirents o (FRS 7 Firnancial Iostraments: Diclesnres) - The
pmendments 1o IFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in respect of fair value measurements and liquidity risk. The impact on
the financial statements has not yet been determined but is only additional disclosures,

The Group has not early adopted any NZ IFRS's.

. ‘
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

4. REVENUE GROUP PARENT
2000 n0g L1 2R
5 5 5 5
Snles and charges 59391138 55,085 044 55,501 21% 52,656,673
Dhvidends received 195,037 115,502 552,180 264,743
Hent revenue 13,644 17,449 13,684 | 7,449
Interest revienue 27,854 50,865 2,271 50,865
Cther revenue 162755 T5300 | 625633 GE2 746
ﬁliﬂwliﬁﬂ 55@“& STIENIQQE E1-| Iwilﬂﬁ
5 {1 ! ME [ GROUP PARENT
20w 2008 o9 2iHis
5 5 5 5
Amounts paid or due and payable to the ssditors for:
Auditing the financial statements 37,500 400,080 34,500 35,0400
Other audit related services L3, 5040 5,500 13,500 5,500
Oither services:
Tax complinnce work and advice 10, 0D 15 (hlh 1500 | 2,0
[N ] G0, 5 (e 35 500 52 500
Subsidinry auditor fees paid or payable for:
Auditing the financial statements 5,004 - - -
Tax complinnee work and advice [ - - -
L1566 - E E
11,566 &0, 50K} 55& 52 500
6. INCOMETAX
CROUP FARENT
2009 2IMKE 009 Io08
Income Inx expense: 5 5 5 5
Currend tax [,256,993 [,344 383 449472 1,415,067
Defermed tax 92440 (2140050 1131295 {159,125

betdd Bl Ll LAIELT  L235.040

The prima facie tax payable an profit before income tax is reconciled to the Income tax expense as follows:

GROUP PFARENT

009 008 1% 008
Prima focie income tax payable on profit before 5 5 5 %
income tax at 30% (2008; 30%) |, 598,807 |, 206,138 1,561,541 1.221 829
Auddd;
Tax effect of
- non deductible expenses 5,716 106,337 5,716 106,337
= fon assessable moome {75,000} (75.000) (75,000} (75, (W)
- shnre of associate dividends (607Y (46,946 - -
= tinpistation credits receivesd (170,474 (129,721} (170479} (129,721}
- nidjustments of prior years {2.631) {20440 (3600 [ 332497

Income tax expense attributable to profit
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
OR THE YEAR ENDED BRER 2009
i, INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
GROUP
Property, Plant  Stock Employes Lieased Fair Value Total
and Equipment Obsolescence  Entitlements  Orchards Adjustmen
£ £ L4 - 3 % £
I Janeary 2008 (3,0501,035) 09,998 K7.653 (218,705} - {3082, 0859
Charge/{credit) to income | 18,905 —ad T (8515 33018 35700 214015
11 December 2008 (2,912,130 124,908 69,138 (185,687) 35,700 (2,868,074)
Charge/{credit) to income 117,043 (26,525} 47,729 (224 R35) (5.342) (F2,4510)
Chargefieredit) 1o equity  _[593.777) = 5 . z {59377
3 December2009  (ISES6H _OR38)  _LIGEST 41054 2988 (385430
FARENT
Property, Plant  Stock Employee Lieased Fair Value Total
and Equipment Obsolescence Entitherments  Owchards Adjustrment
5 5 5 £ 5 5
I January J008 (3.029.165) L G0R B7.653 - = (2,841 514}
Chargeficredit) to income  __| 17,034 24,0407 {18.515) . 15,700 _ ja4Q2s
31 December 20E (2.912,131) 124,905 69,138 - JZT00 (2 4H1.388)
ChargeNeredit) to income 117,043 (26,525) $i, 619 (5.542) 131,295
Charge/{credit) to equity _(593,T84) = - - (593,784}
31 December 20 BIRRRTH) 98380 113757 . JORS8 (3 144877)
Provision for Taxation
GHROLUF PARENT
2wy 2008 Inog 2008
5 5 5 5
Opening balance (330.581) 0O9.933 (325.966) 1,077,625
Current year (ax expense (1,349 447) (1,030, 36K) (1,318,177 [1,255,941)
Tax expense attnbutable to deferred tax 92 445 (2140015} (131.295] (159,126)
Tax payments 1,302,290 3,494 |, 281,755 11,477
Imputation credits received 170,771 375 170,479 -
Closing tax refund / {payable) (L4513 (130,581 (321 20d) (325.966)
Imputation Credit Account PARENT
bl Ions
Balance as ai | Jamuary 2008 2,112,391 3,173.74]
Income tax payments (refunds) during year 1,218,751 -
Imputntion credits on dividends received 17,771 129,721
Imputation ¢redits on dividends paid (1.118,623) (485,059}
Prior period adjostrent - (T1IT033)
Resident withholding tax pad 10,354 1,150
Balance as af 31 December 20019 —adonsad 2212301
Al balanee date the imputation credits available to the sharcholders of the parent company:
Through direct holding m parent company 2403 644 2,212,391
Through direct interests in subsufiafies 15 — 67900
b lst  mditaal
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

7. EARMIMGS PER SHARE GROUPF AND PARENT
2009 L1
5 5
Profit sttributable 1o ordinary sharcholders 107094 1, 1%0a0
Profitable atiribatable to parent inferest on dilution 1979914 3,190,091
Weiphted avemge number of ardinary shares jssued 24,503,122 24,500,122
Basic carmings per share 0,16 cents 0.13 cents
Diluted enmings per share 0. 16 cents .13 cenis

Enmings per ordinary share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue during the year, and
on the operating surplus afler fax atiribyiable o sharcholders,

8, SHARE CAFITAL GROUP AND PARENT
i 008 2009 008
Mool shares Mo of shares % 5
Share capital at | January 2009 24,503,122 24,502,102 9,61 708K Q617,088
Transfers from sharelolders (402,236) (B2E.02H) (278,301} (324,9910)
Translers to shareholders A2, 236 R2R.028 278,301 324,51
Share capital ai 31 December 2009 W m M EIEF HEE

The muthorised share capital of the company includes 24,503,122 (2008: 24,503,122) "A”™ investor shares. 97,786 $1.00
(2008: 203,877 51.00) shares are not paid up. For funher details refer o note 26, The sharcholding in the company is
divided mto two classes Trnnsactor and Investor Shares.  Transactor shares are classified as term liabslities, see further
detuil in note I8,

Investor Shares

Investor shares are issued under the Companies Act 1993 and are tradable. Invesior shares carry 40% of the voting
power of all shares on Bsue, and carry the nght o participate m any annual dividends declared by the directors of the
company. [nvestor shares can participaie in oy surplus assets upon liquidation after the holders of Tramsactor shares
have been paid out. there have been no changes 1o the terms and nghts of the shares dunng the year.

9. RESERVES
Falr Value Reserve GROUP FARENT
2009 20HE QUMK AnnE
5 5 5 5
Balance i 1 Janumry 2009 54 965 - 54,965 -
Movement during the year 16,051 54 965 36,051 54 965
Ralance st 3| December 2009 91,016 54,965 51 016 54,965
Fair value reserve relates 1o fair value adjustments of investmems in listed companies classified as available for sake
invesimenis.
Adsel Revaluation Heserve GROUP PARENT
2009 2008 20 2008
5 5 5 5

Balance at | Janumry 2005 [ 1,658,607 1658617 11,658,617 Il.ﬁﬂ.ﬁl'.'
Movement during the year 2,600,061 - 2 600,061
Deeferred 1ax on revaluation (553, 781) . (393, TR1)
Balance ot 31 December 2009 | 3,664 805 LLE5S861T 13664805 ||,§1'E,ﬁ]
Total Reserves lssall LLJ13 SR Llgssoll L3 oS82
Reflects ingrement in fixed asset valuation o land, buildings and plant performeed m 2000, For meore details refer 1o note
a7,

]
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

I, RETAINED EARNINGS GROUP FARENT
2K il 11 1005 20HIE
5 5 5 5

Retnined camings al | Jamuary 2006 £.286 087 3.5931, 788 4. 124 600 1205 571
Met surplus attributable to sharcholders 1,976,197 3,190,068 3, 886, %60 2816821
Reveral of previously aceounted

Associale eamings [26,238) - = .
Dhstribution to owners {2358 977) {1,897 7923 [2.358.077) [1BOT 792
Balance as at 31 December 2005 6877019 SIIEIEIMT SIESEIS-EI 4I]2-1|Erl.'|l:'l-

In prior year assocuie sccounted carmings of $26,288 were recogmised on share of Southink Supply Limited, Dunng
2009 EasiPack Limiled increased its sharcholding o 8064 and has sccounted for Soulhlink Supply Limited as a
subsidiary for the period ended 31 December 2009 andd s included in net surplus attributable 1o sharcholders and net
pedels (reler 1o aswoginies pote 29 and investments in subsidiarics pote 28 for further details).

11. INT GROUP PARENT
Rl 2008 009 1NIE
5 5 5 5
Retnined camings al | Jamsnry 2049 - - - -
Inderests acoquired during year 20, (MK - . .
MNet surplus attributable o mingiy
interest holders 3,77 - . :
Balance as at 3| December 2007 23717 = - .
12, DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS GROUR FARENT
2N 200E lnng 2iHIE
5 5 5 5
Dividenads
Dvidends paicl:
Investor shares - dividend paid 1,224 433 QE4 40H 1,224,433 FE4 598
Investor shares - dividend payable L34 544 g12 895 I034 544 912 895
Toatnl dividends Ei‘.!-EI'HT iiEDTIWE Iéﬂﬂi‘]'ﬂ LE9T 793

Drividends paid on investor shares amounted to 3007 cents per share (2008: 50,06 cents per share). Dividends payable
amounied to $0.07 cents per share (2008: S0.06).

13 NTS GROUP PARENT
LI 2008 1009 JiMIE
5 3 3 5
Trade creditors 2 384,630 217,912 2,027 819 2,787,593
Sumiry creditors and accruals 1,750,213 2,543,606 1,768,161 2,362,910
Associate payables 91326 78898 H7.R1E TH,HOH
Reloted party payables 2,399 (413 1,427 346

——a200g 1506244
6,628,231 6,900,670 6,282 500 6,656,747

Included in prior year sundry sccruals s 51 10,000 relatmg 1o EastPack Limited's exposure to & bank facility guarantes of
its equity sccounied sssoeciate Jet Stick Limited. This was paid durning the 2009 financial year,

GST payable IISISIT ]'Hi‘e‘-'Ei 3 153213 166 3
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EASTPACK LIMITED

i E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CO M
FOR EXDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS GROUP PARENT
2009 20HHE 2009 2008
5 5 5 5
HBalance at 1 January 2009 263,669 | 79 BET 2ok GH% 179,887
Adbditional provision 655,248 371,503 G4 655 i71.503

{629,124) (282,720 (6249.124) (287.721)
S N} S LN . .} 3T .

Aumound ubilised
Balance ot 31 December X9

This is represented by
Current liability —aBeT03 263660 _ JTO24Y 263,660
’iﬂﬁllﬂz EE?&H i'."'] 243 263 E

All are short-term employer benefils.

PROVISION FOR DIVIDEND GROUP PARENT
2w 1008 20049 2(HIR
5 5 5 5
Balpnce ot | Jemsary 20068 D12.895 . 012,805 -
Dividend paid during the year (912,895) - (F12E05) -
Addetional provision 1034 544 012,805 1134 544 912895
Balance at 3| December 2008 {12} HHE ':IH EEE | ”ﬂa E”ﬂ&

A dividend of $0.07 per investor share was declared on 21 December 2000 (2008 dividend of $1.06 per investor share
was declared on 17 December 200%),

INANCT NSTHRUMENTS

Credin Risk

To the extent that the EasiPack Group las o receivable from another party. there is a credit nsk in the event of non-
performance by that counterparty.  Financial instruments which potentially subject the group to credit risk principally
consist of bank balances, accounts receivable and financial guarmees

The group manages i3 exposure o credit nsk 1w mmmise bosses from bad debts. The group performs credit evalentions
on all customers requiring credit and generlly does not require collaieral. The group monitors the credit quality of
mnjor financial institutions that are counter parties (o i1 fnancinl instruments, and does not anticipate non-performance
by the counter parties.

Muximum exposures to credit risk of balance date are:

GROUP FAREXRT
20 2008 2009 2008
5 5 5 5
Cash and cash equivalents &40, 709 1008 09K 270 3410 1,930 52
Accounts receivable 2001 R8RS 2 0ET GRS | 445 528 H30.973
Intercompany advances = - | 427834 [, 452,834
Leased orchands 1,368,445 HE952 = -
Uncalled enpital 97,786 203,877 87, THG 203,877

The above maximum exposures wre net of any recognised impairment losses on these financial instruments. Mo

collateral is held on the above amoonis,

Corcewitrations of Credir Risk

The group’s lurgest customer secounts for 95% (2008; 95%) of weal siles and 11% (2008: 74%) of trde receivables ai
balonce date.  100% of the group’s balance date cash was with one bank. The group does nol have any other

concentrniions of credit rsk.
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

16, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Status of frade receivables
The status of trade receivables at the reporiing date s as follows:
Group 2009 2008
i ross Impairment Gross Impairment
5 5 5 5
Mol vel due 365,573 - 714,848 .
Orverdue 0 =31 days 308,243 . 204,170 -
Owverdue 31 - 92 days 26,145 - 22,633 -
Overdue 93 - 184 days 342,743 74,270 207,425 -
Orverdue more than 184 days - E . -
Todnl trnde receivables 1,043,004 T4.270 1,149,076 -
Parent 2000 2008
ross Impairment Ciross Impairment
5 5 5 5
Mot yel due 8,961 . [ 04,137 -
Cherdue 0 -31 days 14,733 - 13,327 .
Overdue 31 - 92 days 21,611 . 1,062 -
Crverdue 93 - 184 days 245 8124 14,270 R1EIS .
Owerdue more than 184 days ; - .
Total trade receivables 91,129 74270 206,171

EastPack have provided for specific balunces where recovery of the amount 15 unlikely. There is considered to be no
other impairment of tade receivables at the reporting date, accordingly no impairment allowance has been recorded
{2008: $Nil). EastPack gencrally have the ability to withhold either rebates or dividends from balances owing to
growers and transacting shareholders. Non-recovery of non-provided balances is low. Management actively manage
other deblor balances and recovery of amounts.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the EastPack Group's ability to meet its financial obligations on time. In general, the Group
generates sufficient cash flows from ils operating activities to meet its obligations arising from its financial liabilities
and bk credit lines in place {0 cover potential shortfalls,

The following sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities that are settled on a gross cash flow basis.

Group o
Balance Sheet Contractual & months  6-12 months I-2years  2-Sycars More than
casl Mows or less 5 years
5 s s 5 5 5 5
Mational Bank 21,670,000 3,118,377 521,030 12,148,820 448,427 10461 000
Accousits payable 6625231 6625231  6,625.231 . - - -
Provision for dividend 1,134,544 L, 134 S 1,134,544 = = = -
29429775  20.87R,132  R250.90%5 12148820 448,427 [D46] 0040 .
Cirouap 2008
Balance Sheet  Contractunl & months 612 months |-2years  2-Syears More than
cosh flows  or less 5 years
5 5 5 5 5 5 5
National Bank |8,200,000 15,200,004 - - . = 18,200,000
Accounts payable G,000670 6200670 6,500,670 - = =
PFrovision fior dividend F12.H4%5 912895 912895 - - . -
26,013,565 26,013,565 7.813.565 - . « 18,200,000
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEIY)
INDED 1 DECEMBE

16, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Parent 009
Balance Sheet  Contractual & months 613 months =2 years  2-Syears Maore than
cash flows ar less 3 years
5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Mistional Hank 21670} 13118377 520,130 12,148 220 A4B 47T |46 ] N +
Accounts payable 6282800 6382 R0  6.282.800 - - . .
Mrovisson for dividend _ 1134544 1,134,544 1,134 544 - - - -
29087344 20,535,721 TH38474 12,148,820 448427 0461 000 -
Parent 1008
Ralanee Shect  Contractoal fomonths 612 months I-2 years  2-Syears More than
cash fMows or less § years
5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Mational Hank 18 200,00y 15, 200, (0 - - - = B200000
Accounts payshie 6,656,747 6636747 6,656,747 . - . -
Provisson for dividend O] 2895 0] 2 RS Q)2 805 - - - -
25 TR0 042 25 TROAA2 75604642 - - = 18,200,000
Currency Risk

The EastPack Croup has exposume fo forcign exchange nsk os o sesult of imnsactions denominaicd n forcign
cumencies.  The group has few transactions in forcign cwrrencies, as they generally anse from the purchase of
property, plant and cquipment.  The group's nommal irading activities are conducted in Now Zealand dollars. The
group uses foreign currensy forwand exchonge contracts 10 manage these exposures.

Al reporting date the group’s nsk of exchange rate movements in receivables and payables was Snil.  There swere no
farward contracts in place for forecast purchases | 2008; SNil),

Interest Rate risk

The group has exposure 1o mierest rate risk 1o the extent that it borrows of invests for o (ixed term af fixed mies. The
group manages s cost of bomowing by placing limits on the proportion of bormowings at floating mie, and the
proportion of fixed rate borrowing that % repriced m any year. The Group uses interest rale swaps 1o manige s
interest rate risk. At roporting dote the principal amounts of interest mte contracts outstanding was $Nil (2008:
55,000,004,

Interest vale visk - repricing analysis;
The following able identifies the periods in which financial instroments that wre subgect to interest rafe risk reprice. All
interest rates are matunng in Morch 2009,

Cirotip 1009
Effective Total 6 months  6-12 months [-2 yeurs  2-Syears More than
inferest rate or less 5 years
Y 5 % % % 5 5
National Bank 4,70 206T0,000 21670, - - - -
Giroup 0oy
Effective Toual 6 months 612 months [-Xyears  2-Syenrs More than
interest rate or lesy 5 vears
o 5 5 5 5 5 5
Mational Bank 6349 22200000 22_200,000 . . "
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOD AL MENTS (C INUED
K THE YE DED "EMBER 2009
Eis, . [ | M NTINLE
Parent 2009
Effective Total fimonths  &=12 maonihs I-2years  2-Syears More than
interest e o less 5 years
o 5 5 5 5 5 5
Mational Bank 4,70 21670000 21,670,000 - . . -
Parent 2008
Effectiva Tial 6 months  6-12 months 1-2 years  2-Syears Mose than
imeres e or less 5 vears
%o 5 5 5 5 5 5
Mational Bank .19 2200w 000 22 00, (WK - - = -
lntervat rerle pisk - senxitivity amalysis
EastPack are exposed 10 imerest rate risk relating 1o National Bank borrowings. A 1% change in mtes would affect
after tax profit and equity by +/(- 52 16, T00 [ 2008: 232,000,
Marker Risk
The company has o leased orchard nsset representing prepaid orchard expenses which nre carried forward 1o maich
agninst revenue anticipated for the 2010 season.  This asset represents a risk to the extent that revenue from the 2010
crop docs not exceed costs incurmed at 31 December 2008, The leased orchard asset is 51,368, 448 (2008: $618,952),
Fair values
The estimaied fuir values of financial mstrumenis in the Statemend of Financial Position are their comyang value with
the exceptions os noted below. Fair value has been estimated using discounted cash flows.
Shares i Unilisred Companios amd Financiol Graraniees
It is not procticoble 1o estimote the fair value of shores in unlisted companies and financial guaraniees with an
acceptable level of reliability, The financial guamntee is provided to o related party, therefore are not at arm's length
and therefore not comparable with any market-based amangements,
Financial instroments by classification
Coroup
Assets al Asseis ot Losnsand  Liahiligkes at Linbilities st Total
FY Through Amortised Receivaldes  FY Amartlsed  Carryving
PEL Cost il Valise
5 5 5 5 5 5
31 December 2008
I tekilities as per balarce sheet
Loans and bomowings . . - = 22200000 22200000
Transactor shares . = 3142 0RIEE00  9.EI1OHD
Trade and other payables . . . 6,705,685 6, TO5.685
Derivatives . : 228 = 0.8
Total s e— —ias anladdds JIELLEDS
Assets ws per balanee sheet
Cash and cash equivalents . = 1,998 (6 . - 1,998 0k
Trade and other receivables . . 2,087 983 - - 2,087,945
Leased orchands - - 615952 . - 618,952
Unpaid capital 203.BT7 - - 203,877
Invesiments —Te5044 _ 7O23 - . - 055 D66
Toul T Y O T X3
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2009
Liahilities as per birlance sheet

6.

Loans wwd borrowings - - 21,670,000 21,670,000
Transactor shanes = = - - P 004040 11,114,040
Trade and other pavables - - = A0 TOL 6309, 704
Denvatives - - - - . 2
Total o - - . cm kLT 39093 744
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and coash equivalents = = A0 TG 5 = a0, T
Trade and other receivables = - 2,091 8838 - 2091 B85
Leased orcharnds . - | 368 44K - 1,365 445
Unpaid capital - - 57, TRG . . 07.THG
Investments TR, 005 137,231 - - - 923326
Total 186005 130231 _ZTia5e : — 28
Parent

HAasets al Asseis ol Loans sl Liabdlitkes st Liabilitkes &1 Total

FV Through Amortised Heccivables  FY Amartised  Carryving

PEL Canl Cost Value

5 5 5 5 5 5
31 December 2003
Liahilities ax per bilienee sheet
Loans and borrowings - - - 22.200,000 22,206,000
Transactor shares - - - BRZREDD  DEIH.E00
Trade and other payables = % - - B A00 1R | BANLIR]
Total - - - - Hlf |E.|§| IE 519 18
Assets av per balienee sheet
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,939,521 - . 1,939,521
Trade and other receivables - - 630971 - L G309 473
Unpaid capital - 5 203,877 203,877
Investiments THS D44 - = - - TS 044
Total T ¥ T T Y. ¥ 1T
31 December 20HF
Liahilities ax per balance sheet
Loans and bomowings - - = 20670000 21670, 000
Trunsacior shares - - - - 114,040 111 14,040
Trade and other pavables - - - ST 557 5057557
Total e > : % 151597 J3RJ3LS9T
Axiers ars per balance sieer
Cash and cash equivalents . 271341 - - 271,341
Accoums recetvable - 1445528 | 445,528
Unipaid cagital . - 97746 - - 7RG
Investrents — JEG IS - - . - TR6.095
Tatal Tﬁliﬂiﬁ = LE]4655 - - I" IﬁEr.TE!
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E CK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

17. Y L. RISK MALS
The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability (o conlinue us 4 goimng concem in
order to provide retums to growers, sharcholders and other stakeholders and to mnintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital and maximise refurns. Capital in relation 1o capital management also mcludes transactor
shares

In order to mainiain or adjust the capital structure, the Group moy adjust distnbaunions to bemeficiaries, amount of
dividends paid 10 sharcholders, retum capital to sharcholders, issue new shares, amend capital spending plans or sell
msscts to reduce debt

The Sharcholders have sppoimed the Directors 1o manage the co-operative in order to maximise retums.  The
Directors, consistent with others in the Kiwifruit industry, monitor ad manage capital based on trays supplied and
refurns to growers and investors,

There have been no materinl changes to the Group's capital duning the year.

18, HANS 5 GROUP AND PARENT
L1 2008
Mo, of Shares Mo, af Shares 5 3
Transactor shares at | January 2009 9,828 800 3,165,590 9,828,800 9,169 590
Transactor shares issued during the year 1467518 1,206,584 I 467,518 1,206,584
Snles during the year (182 3TH) [547.374) (152 278} (547.374)

Transactor shares al 31 December 2009 L 114040 ';Ilﬁ'-‘lﬁl'&@ “ | |.|1 EQ EE'PE R(M)

The company has 11,114,052 (2008: 9,328,800) "A" ordinary Transactor shares on issue, The Tronsactor shares are
chassified a5 a liability rather than equity under NZ [FRS due 1o their redemption rights. Trapsactor Shares ane issued by
the company to growers of kiwifruil or other approved produce. They are not freely tradable, and carry 60% of the
voting power of all shares on jssue. Transactor sharcholders have the right 10 participate in any annual rebate declared
by the directors of the company. They carry first right of redemption on liquidation of the company at $1.00 cach
Carrying value of transactor shares is oquivalent to fair value, due to the fixed redemption value and market returns paid
by way of rebate.

149, NOOME IN ADY
GROUP AND FARENT

2009 2003
5 5
Balance at | January 2009 282,230 1,229,167
Recognised in profit or loss duning the period {250, 0040 {250,000)
Fair value odjustment - (H5093T)
Halanee ot 3] Decenber 2005 Sl Rl BR2.230
Current Portion 250,000 250,000
Term Portion 182 2340 B33 20
Total 632230 §iz.230

This repeesents income received in advance, which is recorded over the life of the relevant service contract, The term
portion has been reduced to reflect the net present value of future reccivables,
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

10, BORROWINGS GROUP PARENT
009 2008 p11%L ] 2008
5 5 5 5
Bank loans {secured) 10,200,000 | &, 200,000 10,204,000 18,200,004
Current Portion {secured) 11,470,000 4,000,000 11,470,000 4,000,000
21,670,000 22,200,000 21,670,000 22,200, ()

The current pontion represents femm loans which have o maturity date of less than twelve months from balance date,
EasiPack's toinl facility with Mational Bank of New Zealand T s 538265 mulhon meloding 534.5 million of term
Tirwfing subject 10 annual review. The cument ivterest rates on the secured bank loans range from 4.77% o0 4 85%
(2008: 6. 38% to 6.5} Borrowings are interest only

Secutily - Parent and Group
Loans are secured by a debenture over the companics assets, specific security agreement over all grader equipment and
miofgege over all land and buildings.

21. DERIVATIVES GROUP PFARENT
2000 2008 oo ELLL
5 5 5 5
Interest rte swap - 20228 H0238

There are no inferest rate swaps as ol balance dode. (2008 Interest rate swap i3 on bank term debt of 55,000,000
principal. The swap rate was 3.34% and matured on June 2000, The denvative value reflected the balunce date mark-io-
miarket visluation 1o contracted ninturity date].

1L ot L LY GROUP PARENT
2 2iHKE 20 2008
5 5 5 5
Mational Bank 639,913 1,914,359 270,545 1,855,784
Other Accounis 796 £3,737 T B3.737
HHITI'J":'I !I“&!EE 15!“!“! | | !939!52F
). ALCOUNTS RECEIVABLE GROUP PARENT
2009 pillk UM 2008
5 5 5 5
Trade receivihles 968,734 I 145076 216,859 206,371 .
Sundry receivables 1,094,208 676,033 1195974 170,726 ‘
Related parties advance - 8,757 3,749 B,757
Associnte receivables I8 G 254,119 IR A6 IS4 119
.E!Er'ﬂlég!i- llﬂ-ﬂ?i‘?si IIMSISER -Elﬂl'illﬂ '
4. SED ORCH 5 GROUP PARENT
2009 2003 2009 2ivg
b 5 5 5
Balance at | January 2048 6] B,952 729,016 - - i
Costs capitalised 1,368 448 618,952 = 2 '
Utalisation in cumrent season (18052} (129,016} - = |
Balance o1 31 December (6 | 368 448 618,952 . -
Costs are capitalised s expensed are imcurred prepanng the orchards for the next scason. The costs are recognised |
against revenue in the financial vear to which they relate. Mo costs are incurred for a period of more than one season. i
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

a5, INVENTORY CHONL PARENT
QW 2008 09 el ] 4]
5 : L1 5
Packaging 2,235,749 2,344,990 2,200,131 2,313,095
livventory s subject to retention of title clmeses.
6.  UNPAID CAPITAL GROUP AND PARENT
(MK 2008
5 5
97,756 shares G085 1,00 ( 2008; 203,877 shares $1.00) g7, 786 203,877
Current Asset 32,760 27,500
MNon Current Asset 0, 126 76377
'}‘r!?g Jﬂi!H?T
pening balance 203ETT Job 433
Shares sold - {135,945)
Ex dividend { DO R ] (2.604)
Rebate withheld = (24007 )
Closing balance ':J'.‘-'E'.'Eﬁ- i"uihﬁﬁ

Where the company has issued shares and payment has not been made in full, there s a deferred setthement over a et
penod of ime, Payment for calls on shares is then deducted from rebates and dividends payable to those shareholders.

The current portion of unpaid capital is based on each sharcholder's estimated number of trays for the 2010 season,

17. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

GROLIF PARENT
Accuninlated o009 Accumuluted 20pF
Cost/  Depreciation  Book Yalue Cost/  Depreciation  Book Value
Yaluation Valuation
5 i 5 5 5 5
Baildings {az valuation} 6, THD, 516 TAZ1517T 39250033 46,780,539 7.521.507 39259023
Furniture & Fittings 260 716 qQ7.0a7 I163.63% 20,736 97007 163 619

Plant {at valoation) &
Mustor Vehicles (at cost) IDA30062 14702666 15728296 30368358 (4662368 157059090
Land & Improvemenis

{ut valuaion ) | 1989 667 18348 11770318 1 1.S89.667 28348 11771319
H'J'Iillﬁli']'ﬂ-ﬂ Elﬂﬂlglﬂ Erﬁ!“illl!.’.]'ﬁ E‘HIHWi!-DI'.I ﬁﬂlﬂwlﬁ 1| i %EW!E?I
GROLU® FARENT
Aceumulated 2008 Accumulited 2008
Cost/  Depreciation  Boeok Valoe Cost/  Depreciation  Book Value
Vi luation Valuntion
5 5 5 5 5 5

Buildings {ai valugtion) 40,878 247 5,756,705  2A%,131.5%42 40878246 5,756,705 35,121,542
Furniture & Fittings 2, 767 148,615 118,152 266,67 48,615 118,152
Plant &
Maoter Vehicles (al cost) 25,451 654 | 3,429 862 15,020,772 28420416  13.411,380 15, 0L 026
Lamd & Improvemenis
{at waluation) 11250 70 I6G.414 11054 266 i), T lbh 414 | 1.0%4 286

1
II'I'.IIS-ITI."I-EIE | 3,501,396 ErI!}I-EI'.".'E R-I]iﬂ.lﬁli'-'i‘} |ﬂ|dHJIII4 61,333,006
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EASTIPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

27.  MROPE Ll

Valustion

Land, land improverments, buildings, plant and machinery and chattels are valued in sccordance with valustion reports
of independent registered valuer's dated |5 February 2010, Revalued assets ame valeed on the basis of Replacement cost
less depreciation and capitalisation of markel rentals. The valuer also wsed the Investment approach and Sales
comparison to ensure values are reasonable and suppartable. The valuntion was completed by an independent registered
valuer, 5 Hamis (SPINZ), of the firm: Property Solutions (BOP) Limited on 5 February 2000, The effective date of the
valuntion was 3] December 2009,

Security

Ceortain property, plant and equipment has been pledged as security over ferm loans. A specific security agreemend
exiats over all grader equipment sl morgage over all land and buildings.

IT lnnd and buildings had been camied ot cost less deprecintion, the carmying amounts would have been:

GROUP PARENT
2009 2008 2009 el 1]
3 3 5 5
Land & Improvements 6,411,049 6,383 8RO 6,411,049 6,383,880
Building= 28,620,201 25,516,347 2E 620201 25.516,347
Plant and eguipment 14,128,902 13,558,702 14,106,596 11,545,936

(o) Movements in Carrving Amownts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the begmning and the end
of the current financinl period:

Group

Buildings F“F’;'I'l:;"‘ = u'::':,:;:& o  Land Total

3 5 5 5 £

JUMK
Balance ol | January 2009 35,121,542 115,152 15,021,792 LS 61,345,772
Additions 4497751 22,623 1.B61.5T0 82 408 £.524.352
Disposals {16,076) (12,197 (6035,372) - {633,645)
Addinions throogh scquisition of
entity - - 18,9k . 18,505
Revaluateons 1,423,770 . 404 241 G5 EOS 2577876
Depreciation expense (1,767,965) {24,939 {3,040,656) (55.230)  (4,RE8709)
Impairment on revaluation - . (22,184} . 21,184}
Carrying amount &t 31 December
2009 edbhidilles e—l0i0dd _1SIZ8236 __LLITL3J0 _GOSILZI0
2008
Balance at | Jamanry 2008 I3, 747 849 150 13,527 323 100,560 554 58245877
Additeons 2 HES 465 28,012 4 Bk G096 279060 8002242
Disposals 2 - (26T, 3I8) 3 (267 328)
Depreciation expense (511,772 20000 ) (3,047 B69 ) (535.337T) (4,635 059
Carrying amdunt ai 31 Diecember
2008 SRS - P S WY N - QN 71 11 Py S N 1. . -] 23 N e}
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EASTPACK LIMITED
NCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
7. b b 1 NTINUED
Furniture &  Plant & Motar
FParent Bulldings Fittings Vehicles Land Total
5 5 5 5 5

pLI R

Balace ai | Janunry 2005 35,121,542 118,152 15,000 (126 11,084,286 61,333,006

Additions 4,497,752 B2.623 1R60,953 2,408 8,523,736

[Disposals (16,076) {12,197 (605,372) : (633,645)

Revaleations 423,770 - 494,241 G55 E6S 2.57TT 876

Diejreciition expeitie (1,767,965) {24,939 (3,030,674) (55,2349) (487881T)

Impairment on revaluation - i (22184) _ - (23 184)

Carryeng mdant at 31 December

2009 —itd003 163638 15705990 _LLITI320 _6GEMSTI

In0s

Balonce at 1 January 2008 33,747,849 [ 1,151 13,517,708 1, EB60,554 58,236 262

Addations 2,585,465 28,012 4 805,116 279 (i 1.997 662

Disposals - - (267,128) - {267 318)

Depreciation expense [1.511,772) (20000) (3086470} (33337 (4533 5H))

Carrying amount at 31 December

2008 il e—fulii 000026 LLDB4ZES _0L335006
28, IAVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

GROUP PARENT
20MK9 20s o9 2ipd
5 5 5 5

Southlink Supply Limited - = LR -

EnsiPack Kiwifruit Oiperations Lid . . GG G

Subsidinrivs; Percentape Held Balance date Incorporated in

2009 2iHIE
EasiPack Kiwifruit Operations Lid 106} %% 1 (h %% 31 December MNew Ffealond
Southlink Supply Limited 20 % 50 %% 28 February Mew Fealund

EastPack Kiwifmit Operations Ltd is a direct subsidiary of the Company, EastPack Kiwifrult Operations Lid is
invelved in the management of leased orchands,

Southlink Supply Limited became a subsidiary as at 19 March 2009 by the purchase of 30,000 shares at $1.00 per share.
Southlink Supply Limited is involved as a transport agent within the Kiwifruit industry, ExstPack provides the majority
of Southlink Supplhy's product for tmnsporation

5
Carrying value of the investment R, 00
Share of the fair value of the identifiable net azsets Bib,
Crondwill on acquisition =
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTESTOTH N o NTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
i 8 YE ] AT GROUP PARENT
L1 2008 2009 Pl
5 5 5 5

Resulis of assecintes
Share of operating surpluses / (deficins) before tix 507,010 £33 806 - -
Taxation (152.103) (148 93R) . a
Share of opemating surpluses / (deficiis) 354,907 BEd B68 -
Other recognised surpluses / (deficits) 22,241 - x
Share of total recognised revenues and expenses 377,148 O5d B68 =
Interests [n assoeciates
Shares a1 cost 12,078 Ta2,078 THLOTE 762,078
Share of surpluses 711,273 3R] 453 - -
Balance ai the beginning of vear 1,523,351 i.343,531 762,078 T62.078
MNew invesiments ELATIE 0, (Wl 30, e S0,000
Disposals (129.621) { B0, 00} .
Imipairment wdjustment - {26, 668) - (26 6G6R)
Share of total recognised revenues and expenses ¥7T.148 k4, 568 - -
Dividends'rebates (357 143) (528 380 = =
Balance at end of year 1!4-1]!?35 Iéﬂgi] 'J'Illl]l‘i'it "-'Ejid.lﬂ
Included in the carrying amount is:
Goodwill 502,924 502,924
Details of Associstes
RLLLY Assels Limbilitles Revienue Prafit % Held Carrylng

{luss) At
Southern Produce Limited 54616,623 3,410,296 15,556,150 1,004,019 S0 1443735
2HIE Assels Linhilities Hevenue Prafit e Held Carrying

iloss) Amuouni
Southlink Lid 5,840 - 132,635 5840 25 23,333
Southlink Supply Lid 1. 166,752 579157 4135615 406 e 50 Th, 288
Jestick Lid - - - - 20 =
Southem Produce Limited 4.211,164 2,015,893 10545, 348 TEL.452 50 1LA23.730
Associntes Principal Activities Balance [t
Southlink Lid Transporting agent 28 February
Southlink Supply Limited Transporting agent 28 February
Jetstick Lid Manufacture of lnbeling systems 31 December
Southerm Produce Lrmited Murketer of fresh prodice 3] Miarch

Annual Report 2009

All sssocintes ore incorpornied in New Zealand. There are no significant restrictions on the ability of any associale to
pay dividends, repay loans or ostherwise transfer funds to the mvestor company, Southlink Limited ceased trading in
Febouary 2008, In Febouary 2009 Southlink Limited repaid ihe EastPack equity totalling 326,333,

Southlink Supply Limited was incorporated in January 2008 and commenced trding March 2008, Southlink Supply
Limited conducts the same business as Southlink Limdted previously, EasiPack contributed 30% of Southlink Supply
Limited equity by cash payment. Southlink Supply Limited was accounted for as an associate in the prior year, During
thie year ended 31 Decemnber 2009, EastPack Lul increased its sharcholding to 800 by purchasing 30,000 $1.00 shares
From an existing shareholder thereby ganing control of Southlink Supply Lid. Soathlink Supply Lid is accounted for as a
subsidiary of EasiPack Lid in the 2009 fmancial year, Refer (o note 23 for further details.

During the year EastPack surmendered ils shores 1o the remaining shareholders in Jetstick Lud for SNl per shore. This
wis in consideration for the remoining sharcholders taking up EastPack bank gusmntee linbility. The investment m
Jetstick Lid was impaired by 526,668 to SN, in the year ended 31 December 2008,

Page 44




k1]

32,

EASTPACK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

il EM
GROUP PARENT
2009 Inog 2WHd L1111
5 5 5 5
Shares in unlised companics LLEN L 683673 6415 176,151
Shares in lisied companies 239 el 271,193 239 BA0 E.893

923,316 955,066 185,095 THS.044

Investments i unlisted compamies are stated ai cost becanse fair value cannot be reliably measured. In all cases the
sharcholdimgs are stable, therelfore there are no trades for which a value has been stick, Al unlisted shares are held
for the long term. Invesimends in listed companies are stated o fuir value,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS GROUP PARENT
L1 2008 2049 2iHKE
5 5 5 5
Trademarks

Carrying amsount i | January 10, Rl eb 12 M) | [k =01 | 2, (KRR
Acesmulnied amartisation - {1,201} - i1, 204K)
Accumulnted impairment losses £ |0, Bl - RLLR=I)] -
Carrving amsount sl 31 Diecember = 101, B0 = 101, B

Trademarks represent amounts paid externally for trademark license on internally generated brands. The licenses are for
p finite perod, Trademarks are amorised over monagements expectaion of their wseful hie bemg 10 years,
Management assess at each balance date the camying value and the expected future values embodied in the trademarks,
for impairment. During the year EastPack Limited summendered the trademark to Southern Produce Limited

ATION
GROUP FARENT
1 2008 1009 ZiNiE
5 5 5 5
Mel surplus afier xation 3979514 3,190,091 3,886,960 2E16,82]
Add (deduct) non-cash iiems
Depreciation 4,959,185 4,635,019 4,949 206 4,633,594
Lioss on sale of propenty, plant and equipment 437 676 2a0 B68E 43T 6TH 260 BHE
Fair value ndjustments E2.641 BE S50 E2.641 ER.060
Amorisation - 1,200 - 1,206
Impairment of intangibles 1100, R = 13, =0 .
Equity scoounted camings - Associates (377,148) [BRd B6H) . .
Movement in deferred fax 92,450 (214,015) (131,295) (159 126)
Income m advance expired (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000)
Dedust items eredited direstly to equity
Maovement in deferred tax 503 784 - 593,784 -
5549 388 3BT, 164 5692812 4.575496
Movement in Working Capital
Increasefdecrease) in accounts payable (759, 19%) 3 1B9.556 (37507 3,000 084
Increase/{decrease) in employes entithemems (48,601 ) 83,782 15574 §3,782
(IncreaseVdecrease in accounts receivable T4 848 286,175 (870,002 TI5,607
{Increase )Vdecrease in GST | 50,795 031 69%0 148,877 36,785
{Incrense)decrease in leased orchards { 749 496) I 10,064 ' .
(Increase ) decrease in inventory 1,241 (GhH3,EI5) 1125054 (671,534 )
Increase/{decrease) in income lax pavable (2026200 1.330,514 {2.762) L AD3 591
{1,424, 029) 4420955 (969, 386) 4 H68.ETS

Mt cash inflowoutflow ) from opemting activities I:I-,II}S%."} i I.4ﬂ£ 8,610,186 14,061,192
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EASTPACK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
OR THE YEAR ENDED R 2009

33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Key Manugement Fersonnel

Key mamagement includes all personnel whom have the authority and responsibility for planmming, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, This includes senior management and directors.

Shori-term Poat-employment Oiher lang-term Termination
henefits benefits benefits benefits
§ 5 5 5
2009 1,581,544 . - -
2008 100,622 - - -

Oy termination key management personnel (grower direciors) are entitled o receive dividends on shares held for o
perind of tano years.

The grower direciors have packed their kiwifruit with the company st the standard rates charged 1o
shareholders, Grower directors received the following rebates and dividends:

Rebates Dividends
el 111 1) 2008 el SiHE
g 5 5 %

K M Clarke A 8330 Hia 1, (k44
G 5 Evoon and M Monlgomery B4 il 67630 | 46,328 1 (803, B
K M Hudson 6,68 15,904 14,001 G 634
C G Overdievest MA 24 B0 WA 33,677
A K Woolscy ST.111 44195 15,931 52,306
B B Sharp 135259 18378 &0 069 67,045
A Ganlht 35307 A 23,382 A
M McHride 435,501 HiA 44,700 NA
G W Sommerville 0419 30,483 - .

Rk M Hodson, R B Sharp, G 5 Eynon and M ] Montgomery own orchards for which the company provides services on
normal commercial terms. Payments for services were as follws:

B M Hudson $153 (2008: 51,219). Balance outstanding at 31 December 2009 SNl (2008: SNil)

B B Sharp 5479 (2008; $36,688), Balance outstunding at 31 December 2006 511,004 (2008: 1,671}

G Eynon and M J Monigomery £33 964 (2008 537 B562). Balonce outstanding ot 21 December 2009 SNl (2008:
£2537N,

G 5 Eynon anad M J Momtgomery own a kiwifruit contracting business that provides labour to EnstPack Kiwifruit
Operations Lid under nommal commercial terms.  Poyments made during the venr were SX08.950 excl GST for
contracting (2008; 5247949 contracting). G 8 Eynon and M ) Montgomery own an orchard, Pine Valley Middle Eanh
Jaimt Venture,  Payments made to the Joint Venture were S609,940 { 2008: $444,698), On 21 December EastPack Lid
advenced $500,000 to Fine Valley Joint Venture. The loan is non-interest bearing in consideration for the first right of
refusal to lease the Pine Valley Joint Venture site from 31st July 2012 or earlier if the partics agree. The advance is
secured over the investor amd transactor shares held by G 5 Evnon ond M 1 Montgomery,

M Hudson owns a kiwifruit contracting business that provides labour under normal commercial terms, Payments made
during the year were 516,241 for contracting, { 2008: £25,677).

RB Sharp acts as a director for Robert Mook Transport Limited, a company that supplies transportation services to
EastPack on normal commercial terms. RB Sharp does not hold any financial imerest in Robert Monk Transport
Limited. Payments made during the year wene $582,209 (2008; $659.876). R Sharp is also a Director of Zespri Limited,
Lespn Limited is the major customer of EastPack Limited,
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3. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
The following directors acquired shares in the company during the year. All transactor shares were issued at

$1 per share.
Transactor Shares Investor Shares
2009 2008 2009 L1
5 5 5 5

K M Clarke MIA - MiA -

G S Evnon 3,120 713 . -

R M Hudson L0095 7724 - -

C O Overdevest MA 6,427 /A =

A K Woolsey - - 3,182 -

M J Mongomery 3,120 m . -

K B Sharp 49,726 17914 - 12,000

M 5 Ashby . - = -

M G Kidd - . . -

M MeBride 4 826 A - MIA

G W Sommerville 19,709 . . -

A Gault 15,844 MA - MiA
Subsidiaries
All amounts owing to'from subsidiaries amd included in Intercompany Advances in the Statement of Financial Poaition,

2009 008
5 5

Total amounts owing to Esstpack Limited from subsidinries: 1427834 1,452,834

During the year EastPack Ltd enfered into the following transactions with its subsidiaries on normal commercial terms:
- Sale of kiwifruit packing services to EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Lid $770,154 (2008; $852,467)
- Sale of Kiwigreen Monitoring services o EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Led $2,280 ( 2008: $6,691)

= EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Lid paid EastPack Lid $3,868 (2008: §7,347) for the lease of the Quarry Road
Orchards.

Dwring the year EastPack Lid contracted Southlink to complete its Logistics services {for which EastPack Lid owns o
80% share), EastPack Ltd paid $862,629 for these services in the yvear ended 31 December 2009 (2008: $1.917,761),
The transactions were on normal commercial ferms.

EastPack Lid received SMil load rate incentives from Southlink (2008: £379,401),

Associares

EastPack Ltd relinquished its shares in Jet Stick Limited during the year ended 31 December 2009 in retum for the
remaining Jet Stick Limited shareholders taking up EastPack’s lisbility to Jet Stick™s bank gaurantee (2008: the total of
the guarantee is $74,000, EastPack toisl exposure is $110,000), EastPack Ltd also received revenue of 1,783,502
(2008:; 52,791,705) from Southemn Produce Limited, and paid expenses of $99,868 (2008: $147.824) to Southemn
Produce Ltd, an associate company in which they have a 50% shareholding. All transactions are on normal commercial
terms.

All smounts owing from associate companics are detailed in Note 23: Accounts Receivable,
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EASTPACK LIMITED
M

EAR ENDED 31 E

33, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

{ther

EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Lid a subsidiary of EastPack Lid holds o 10% ownership in Te Matai Kiwi Partnership.
EastPack Kiwifruit Operations Litd provides orchard management services and charges Te Matai Kiwi Partnership on
normal commerciol terms. As at 31 December 2009 the balanes owing to the group was 539,264 (2008: §25452)

EastPack Entity Trust operates n kiwifruit pool trust for the benefit of growers. EsstPack Ltd is a trustee of the Trust,
and supplies coolstorage, packing and transport services to the trust on behalfl of the growers. EastPack Lud received
payments for services of $58,635,853 (2008: $55,875,733). EastPack Ltd paid the Trust $2,560,922 (2008:
$3,421,676) for Class Il fruit. In addition, EastPack Lid provides an unlimited guarantee io the National Bank of New
Fealand, on behalf of the Trust, for its overdraft facility. At balance date $2,067,263 (2008: $1,506,244) was owing to
EastPack Entity Trust. This is disclosed as o Relsted Party Payable in Note 13, All transactgions with EastPack Entity
Trust are on normal commercial terms.

No related party debts have been written off or forgiven during the year ( 2008: SNil),

3.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

GROUP PARENT
L1 2008 1007 2008
5 5 5 £
Ciuarantee of bank overdrafl facilities for ExstPack
Endity Trust to a limit of: Unlimited Uinlimited Unlimited Linlimited
At balamce date the amount of the bank overdraft
s guaranteed was: Nil Nil Mil il

Zespri pays growers a loyalty payment for supplying Zespei frubt for a contracted term.  Zespri has advertised this rate at
15 cents {2008; 15 cents) per tray equivalent loaded. As a bonus to growers, EastPack pays the growers by tray
equivalents submitted (packed). The difference between loaded and submitted is fruit loss. EastPack has accounted for
this payment in the current financial statements. Zespri, in the last financial yeor, increased the loyalty payment nfter
EastPack had printed their annual report. EastPack therefore incurred an additional cost in the year ended 31 December
2009 for @ prior year transaction. | Zespri again decided to increase the loyalty payment EastPack would have a
liability that is not recorded in these financial statements, FastPack do not know if Zespri intend increasing the loyalty
payment for the 2009 year nor what the possible increase would be,

35, COMMITMENTS GROUP AND PARENT
2009 2008
5 s
Estimuted capital expenditure contracted for a1 balance date but not provided for: 3,130,915 7,411,383

. iz it
Lease commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

Less than one year 635,884 12,000
Between one and five years 13 856 .
Cireater than five years . -

Total operating lease commitments 84,740 12,000

All operating lease commitments relate to coolstore facilities. The leases vary in term from one to three years. There

are o rights of renewal on expiry.
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Indusiry segments

The information set out below is that as presented 1o the chiel operating decizion maker. The EastPack Group operales
predominately in two industries - packhouse/'coolstore, orchard management, and in one geographical area - New
Zealand, The orchard managenment operation is nol significant to the tolal trading of the Growp,

Coolstore
Packhouse

2009 2008

S000  S000
Sales to customers outside Group 50326 55,085
Intersegment sales = =
Unnllocated revenue 1923 1139
Tolal revenue 61249 S6.244
Unnllocated expenses and faxation 57,716 53,054
Group operating surplus (before equity
accounting) 4351 2,505
Share of associate income/{(deficit) 3717 685
Afler charging:
Depreciation 4048 4,635
Investments in pdtocinbes 1444 1523
Total segment assets 75,724 71,089
Unallocated assets
segment assets - -
Total assels TSITH m
Mon-curmeni pssets acquired - 7683
Total segment linkilitics 45448 44472
Linnllocated liabilities = =
Tatal liabilities 548 44

Intersegmental sales nre ol market prices and are payable on normal commercial terms and conditions.

37.  SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE
The board of directors approved on 22 February 2000 the payment of a final dividend of 7 cents per investor share (o be
paid on 31 March 2010. (2008: approval of a final dividend of 7 cents per investor share to be paid on 31 March 2009),
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K LIMITED

ASAT 3 DECEMBER 2009

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS
Sharcholder Investing Transacting

Shares held Shares held
Lichfield Lands Inc. 1,619 486 297,956
Brenick & Evnon Family Trust | 650,000 -
Watlon Estate 048,542 327,364
Cape Frult Co. Ltd 874,054 221,999
Tirchanga Fruit Co Lid 708 852 158,118
Franklin, C A 567,104 | B3,448
Blennerhassett D & K 580,108 | T 408
Flowers, R J Lad 632,186 85,716
Prowse Orchards Lid 537,386 | 58,5996
Ovwerdevest, CI M 561,286 108,517
South East Hort Led 608,544 59,097
West, RI1& K 422,080 181,991
Farmgold Lid 324,792 -
Wedge Co Lid 392 598 125,728
Allen Crrchards Lid 242 126,461
Reckie, Ken 2900 434 142,891
Kopuatnwhiti Trust 310,850 122,496
Hi Top Farms Lid 301,908 110,269
Adrflow Holdings Lid 400,000 .
Steele Family Trust, N R 273,034 19,478
Fiteroy Orchard Partnership 307,106 78,890
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Edgecumbe

Head Office Phone: 07 304 8216

678 Eastbank Road Fax: 07 304 8262

PO Box 45 Freephone: 0800 722 554
Edgecumbe Email: admin®eastpack.co.nz

Te Puke

40 Te Puke Quarry Road Phone: 07 573 9309
Te Puke Fax: 07 573 9310

Email: tepuke®@eastpack.co.nz

Opotiki

Stoney Creek Road Phone: 07 315 5226
Opotiki Fax: OF 315 5324

Email: opotiki@eastpack.co.nz
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AUDIT REFORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EASTPACK LIMITED

We have sudited the fimancial statemens on pages 14 1o 49, The financial statements pravide information about the past
financial performance ond financial position of the company and group as s 31 Decenmber 2009, This information ks stated in
necordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 18 to 29,

Board af Directors Responsibilities

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparsiion of the financial satements which give a true and foir view of the
fimancial position of the company and growp as ot 31 December 2009 snd of the results of their operstions and cash Mows for
the year ended on that date.

Avuditors’ Hesponsibilities
It is our responsibility b express 1o vou an independent opinkon on the financisl statements presented by, the Direciors.

Basis af Opinien
An sudit includes examining, on o test basis, evidence relevant to the emounts and disclosures In the financial stntements. It

also includes assessing:

* ihe significant estimntes and fudgments mode by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and
- whether the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the company®s and group’s circumatonoes, consistently applied and
sdequately disclosed.

We condwected our sudin in sccordance with Mew Fealand Auoditing Stusdands. 'We planned and performed our nudit 5o as 1o
obtain all the information and explanations which we comsidered peceisary in order o provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable sssurmnce that the financial stntements are free from material misstatemenis, whether caused by froud or ennor,
In Foerming our opinien we slss evaluated the overall sdequocy of the presentalion of information in the financial statements,

Our firm has provided other services to the company and its subsidiaries in relation to taxation and general accounting services.
The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the company or its subsidiaries,

Unggunlified Cpinkon
We have obtnined all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinien:

. proper accouniing roconds have been kepl by the company and group as far as appears from our examination of those
records;, mnd
w the financial staterents on pages 14 (o 49
- comply with generally acoepied noccouniting practice in BMew Sealand;
. comply with International Financlal Reporting Standards: and
- give o true and foir view of the Minancial positien of EastPack Limited and its subsidiaries as ot 31 December
2009 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Crur nudit was completed on 22 March 2010 and our ungualified opinion i expressed o ot that date,

/f@,ﬁ.‘ rz,éuj

STAPLES RODWAY
HAMILTOM
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